
 

PUBLIC/LEGAL NOTICE 
The regular monthly Board meeting of the Lisle Library District (LLD) Board of Trustees will be held on November 19, 2025 at 7:00 p.m. 

at the Lisle Library District, 777 Front Street Lisle, Illinois. 

Persons who cannot provide public comment in-person may send comments via email to pubcomment@lislelibrary.org or via USPS mail 

addressed to: Public Comment/Administration, 777 Front Street, Lisle, IL 60532. Comments should be received at least 12 hours prior to 

the scheduled meeting time. Submitted comments will not be read aloud. Comments will be provided to Trustees prior to the start of 

the meeting and are considered a public record. 

The LLD records all regular Board meetings. Any person who has a disability requiring accommodations to participate in this meeting 

should contact the Lisle Library during regular business hours within 48 hours before the meeting. Requests for a qualified interpreter 

require three working days advance notice. 

 

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT 

BOARD MEETING 

November 19, 2025 - 7:00 p.m. 

1. Roll call 

2. Opportunity for visitors to speak - general public comment period 

3. Assignments for reviewing monthly accounts payable 

a.  Vice President Berry and Treasurer Breihan reviewed the October billings in November 

b.  Trustee Larson and Trustee Paley will review the November billings in December 

4. Consent Agenda - Action Required 

a. Approve Minutes of the October 15, 2025 Board Meeting 

b. Acknowledge Treasurer’s Report, 10/31/25, Investment Activity Report, 10/31/25, Current Assets Report, 

10/31/25, Revenue Report, 10/31/25, and Expense Report, 10/31/25 

c. Authorize Payment of Bills, 11/19/25 

5. Unfinished Business 

a. Capital Improvement Projects 

i. CCS - BAS Project Update 

ii. TERRA Engineering - final concept phase deliverables and project planning discussion - Action Required 

Approval to request a proposal from TERRA Engineering for the design and construction administration of 

the LLD Nature Trail 

6. Audit Presentation - Lauterbach & Amen - discussion 

7. Committee Reports 

a. Finance 

b. Personnel and Policy 

c. Physical Plant 

8. Staff Reports 

a. Director Report 

b. Assistant Director Report 

9. New Business 

a. Accept Annual Audit - Action Required 

Acceptance of Library Audit, year ended June 30, 2025. 

b. Adopt Ordinance 25-05: Tax Levy Ordinance - Action Required 

Annual ordinance levying taxes for corporate purposes for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2025 and ending 

June 30, 2026 

c. Approve Certification of Compliance with TITA - Action Required 

Annual Certificate of Compliance with the Truth in Taxation Act 

d. Acknowledge payment of earned/unused vacation time as required by IL Wage Payment and Collection Act 

(820 ILCS 115/5) - payment shall not exceed $458.60, to be paid to Daniel Chavez. 

10. Opportunity for Trustee comments (five minutes) 

Berry, Breihan, Larson, Martin, Paley, Sullivan, Swistak,  

11. Adjourn 

1 



 

1 
 

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT 
BOARD MEETING 

October 15, 2025 - 7:00 p.m. 
 

1. Roll call 
Present: 
Emily Swistak - President 
Vanessa Berry - Vice President 
Debbie Breihan - Treasurer 
Josh Martin - Secretary 
Laura Paley - Trustee 
Liz Sullivan - Trustee  
 
Absent 
Karen Larson - Trustee 
 
Also present: 
Tatiana Weinstein - Director 
Will Savage - Assistant Director 
Jackie Kilcran - Recording Secretary 
Marc Rogers - CCS International Inc. [left the meeting at 7:07 p.m.] 
Paul Hurt - Director of Circulation Services [arrived at 7:10 p.m., left the meeting at 7:26 p.m.] 
 

2. Opportunity for visitors to speak - general public comment period - None. 
 

3. Assignments for reviewing monthly accounts payable 
a. Secretary Martin and Trustee Sullivan reviewed the September billings in October 
b. Vice President Berry and Treasurer Breihan will review the October billings in November 

 
4. Consent Agenda - Action Required 

a. Approve Minutes of the September 17, 2025 Public Hearing for Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance 

b. Approve Minutes of the September 17, 2025 Board Meeting 
c. Acknowledge Treasurer’s Report, 09/30/25, Investment Activity Report, 09/30/25, Current Assets 

Report, 09/30/25, Revenue Report, 09/30/25, and Expense Report, 09/30/25 
d. Authorize Payment of Bills, 10/15/25 

MOTION: Trustee Paley moved to approve the Consent Agenda. Treasurer Breihan seconded. 
Roll Call Vote - All Aye. The motion passed. 
 

5. Unfinished Business 
a. Capital Improvement Project 

 i.   BAS update 
 ii.  HVAC Update 
 iii. LLD Nature Trail Development (Kingston lot) 
 

Mr. Rogers informed Trustees that IBS continues to troubleshoot issues with the BAS. There is 
an ongoing issue with controls and temperature gauges with the boiler.  
 
The HVAC equipment installation is complete. The closeout documents are being prepared 
and final payment will be made. 

2 



 

2 
 

 
The Nature Trail Development (Kingston lot) OSLAD grant application has been submitted. 
TERRA Engineering provided support to complete the application. There were five thematic 
areas highlighted in the grant which included the following: open green programming space, 
nature trail and accessible bridge, story board experience with native plantings, nature-
themed play area, and the shaded picnic seating, reading benches and game space. It will be 
a few months before grant awards are announced. 
 
There will be a closeout update at the November Board Meeting on the initial design phase of 
the project. Recommended next steps will be suggested at the December or January meeting.  
  

 Mr. Rogers left the meeting at 7:07 p.m. 
 

6. Committee Reports 
a. Finance - Treasurer Breihan had nothing to report. 
b. Personnel and Policy - Vice President Berry had nothing to report. 
c. Physical Plant - Secretary Martin had nothing to report. 

 
7. Staff Reports 

 
a.  Director Weinstein informed Trustees that 700-750 people attended Fall Fest. Patrons provided 

positive feedback on the live owls, pretzel truck, fall-themed photo booth, inflatable slide, and 
pumpkin judging contest. Director Weinstein stated that the Adult Services’ pumpkin received the 
most votes. 

 
 The Downtown Lisle Hokusai installation has been removed. However, the Japanese garden will 

remain. Director Weinstein attended a meeting at the Village to review budgeted items, storage of 
reusable items, and options for the volunteer-created banners. After speaking with Village Manager 
Cook, Director Weinstein was told that the banners displayed at the LLD will be picked up by Village 
staff. 

 
 Lauterbach & Amen auditors were on site in September to conduct fieldwork. Director Weinstein and 

the Office Manager were interviewed separately for a fraud/risk assessment. The audit will be 
presented to the Trustees in November. 

 
 The LLD partnered with the Lisle Police Department for a car seat safety check on September 27th in 

the LLD parking lot. Drivers met with certified officers who checked vehicles for proper seat setup. 
 
 Staff from Circulation and Adult Services attended the annual Lisle Depot Days on September 20th. 

They brought along materials that aligned with the Depot Days theme. 
 
 On September 18th staff visited Villa St. Benedict and informed residents of the LLD Home Delivery 

Service. Staff spoke to 15 residents, and issued 8 new library cards. She also mentioned that YS staff 
have conducted multiple outreaches to the schools.  

 
 Director Weinstein stated that the LLD Nature Trail OSLAD Grant Application has been submitted. She 

thanked Marc Rogers and Sarah Hunt for their assistance in completing the application, as well as 
TERRA Engineering for their input.  She thanked Senator Laura Ellman, Representative Terra Costa-
Howard, Village of Lisle Mayor Mary Jo Mullen, and Village Manager Jeffrey Cook for their letters of 

3 



 

3 
 

support.  If awarded, the LLD could receive up to $548,937.50 in grant funding. Award notices take 
approximately two to three months for the DNR to review. 

 
 Director Weinstein stated that the LLD partnered with 13 other libraries on a RAILS commuter ad on 

Metra trains. The ad features a QR code that passengers can utilize to connect to our digital platforms 
and services. 

 
b.  Assistant Director Savage stated that Phoenix Restoration has been on site to measure the window in 

the south entrance. The window is laminated glass, and does not pose a safety hazard. A new 
window will be ordered and Phoenix Restoration will install it once received. 

 
 J & J Tree Removal has done fall tree pruning and trimming. Jim Dhamer Plumbing repaired a leaking 

spigot, a leaking water heater, and adjusted the east end men’s restroom fixtures. 
 
 1 Source Mechanical replaced bearings on the hot water pump that provides heat to the west end of 

the building. Once they replaced the bearings, hot water flushing exposed several other leaking 
valves. All have been repaired. 

 
c.  Director of Circulation Services Paul Hurt  

 
 Paul Hurt, Director of Circulation Services, informed Trustees about the community outreach that 

Circulation staff participated in, such as visits to the French Market, National Night Out, Depot Days, 
the Senior Resource Fair, and Villa St. Benedict. Staff spoke with over 1000 residents. 

 
 Mr. Hurt informed Trustees that the LLD was one of the first libraries in Illinois to sell Illinois license 

plate renewal stickers. He provided an overview of the process. Since starting the program in 
December of 2020, the LLD has sold over 1900 Illinois license plate stickers.  

 
 Mr. Hurt left the meeting at 7:26 p.m. 
 

8. New Business  
   

a. Approve Resolution 25-05: Resolution to Determine Estimate of Funds - Action Required 
MOTION: Trustee Sullivan moved to approve Resolution 25-05, a Resolution to Determine Estimate of 
Funds needed for the 2025-26 fiscal year. Secretary Martin seconded. 
 
Director Weinstein provided an overview of Resolution 25-05: Resolution to Determine Estimate of 
Funds which indicates not-to-exceed amounts for the upcoming levy.  
 
Roll Call Vote - All Aye. The motion passed. 
 

b.  Approval for closing Library for Staff Development Day - Action Required 
 MOTION: Secretary Martin moved to approving closing the LLD on Friday, November 7, 2025 for Staff 
 Development Day. Trustee Sullivan seconded. 
 

Director Weinstein reviewed the agenda for Staff Development Day which will include training for fire, 
Code Adam and tornado drills. There will be a session on challenges while serving the public. Staff will 
review best practices regarding 1st Amendment audits. The Chicago Hearing Society will give a 
presentation about serving the Deaf community. Lisle Police Department Sergeant James Dexter will 

4 



 

4 
 

review active shooter training and bomb threat protocols. There will be a NARCAN training session for 
all staff. The day will conclude with a team building exercise. 
 
President Swistak stated that she was impressed with the training agenda, and thought the 
opportunity for all staff to attend the training together was valuable. 
 
Secretary Martin asked who would be paying for the opioid antagonist doses.  Director Weinstein 
stated that costs can range around $50.00 per pack, and that it was not yet determined if the LLD 
would absorb the cost, or if the State or County would assist. She mentioned that the County would 
offer starter packages for libraries.  

 
 Roll Call Vote - All Aye. The motion passed. 
 

9. Opportunity for Trustee comments (five minutes) 
 

President Swistak stated that she enjoyed Fall Fest. She thanked the staff for putting on such a successful 
event. She is looking forward to the next library-wide program in December. She also thanked the Director 
and staff for the work on the grant application. 

 
 Trustee Sullivan stated that she enjoys the quarterly reports, and finds them informative. 
 

Trustee Paley said she loved Fall Fest. She was impressed by the pumpkin decorating. She enjoyed the owls. 
She has been impressed with the homesteading programs. She also thanked the Director for the grant 
submission. She stated that she understands the amount of work that goes in to applying for grants. 
 
Secretary Martin had nothing to report. 
 
Treasurer Breihan also thanked the Director for the grant submission. She thought Fall Fest was great. She 
was impressed to hear that Adult Services is discussing ways to limit lines at future programs. She also enjoys 
receiving the newsletter. 
 
Vice President Berry enjoyed Fall Fest. She is impressed that the LLD is using the community survey results in 
program planning, and that community input is having an impact. 
 

10. Adjourn 
MOTION: Trustee Martin moved to adjourn the meeting. Secretary Sullivan seconded. 
Voice Vote - All Aye. The motion passed. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:38 p.m. 
 
Recorded by 
 
____________________________________ 
Jackie Kilcran, Recording Secretary 
 
Approved by the Board of Trustees on November 19, 2025. 
Approved by 
 
_____________________________________ 
Joshua Martin, Secretary of the LLD Board of Trustees 

5 



6 



7 



8 



9 



10 



11 



12 



13 



14 



15 



16 



17 



18 



1
1
/1

2
/2

5
 a

t 
1
3
:1

2
:2

2
.2

3
P

a
g

e
: 

1

L
is

le
 L

ib
ra

ry
D

is
tr

ic
t 

2
0

2
5

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a
b

le
 -

 N
o

v
e
m

b
e
r 

1
9
, 
2
0
2
5

V
e

n
d

o
r 

ID
In

v
o

ic
e

/C
M

 #
L

in
e

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
A

c
c

o
u

n
t 

ID
A

c
c

o
u

n
t 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
D

e
b

it
 A

m
o

u
n

t
C

re
d

it
 A

m
o

u
n

t

A
F

L
A

C
9

8
8

6
8

6
P

a
y
ro

ll 
W

it
h

h
o

ld
in

g
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
1

2
-0

0
A

F
L

A
C

 W
it
h

h
o

ld
in

g
1

1
7

.4
0

A
F

L
A

C
 (

G
6

9
2

0
)

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
1

7
.4

0

A
lb

e
rt

s
o

n
s

1
1

0
6

2
5

S
u

p
p

lie
s

1
0

-4
0

-5
7

8
7

-0
0

S
ta

ff
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

7
7

.7
7

A
lb

e
rt

s
o

n
s
 |
 S

a
fe

w
a

y
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
1

0
-0

0
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

7
7

.7
7

A
lle

g
io

n
9

0
0

6
0

5
6

2
E

x
te

ri
o

r 
D

o
o

r 
C

o
n

tr
a

c
t

1
0

-2
0

-5
6

6
1

-0
0

M
a

in
t 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 -
 M

a
in

t.
 

3
,5

4
5

.0
0

A
lle

g
io

n
 A

c
c
e

s
s

T
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

ie
s
, 

L
L

C
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
1

0
-0

0
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

3
,5

4
5

.0
0

A
m

a
z
o

n
1

1
0

3
2

5
B

o
o

k
s
, 

E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t,

 S
u

p
p

lie
s

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

6
4

-1
0

B
o

o
k
s
 -

 N
o

n
 F

ic
ti
o

n
3

2
0

.7
6

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

6
5

-1
0

B
o

o
k
s
 -

 A
d

u
lt
/T

e
e

n
 F

ic
ti

3
0

8
.9

5
1

0
-6

0
-5

9
3

1
-1

0
P

ro
g

ra
m

s
 -

 A
d

u
lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

5
8

0
.9

4
1

0
-4

8
-5

8
2

3
-2

0
M

in
o

r 
E

q
u

ip
 -

 A
d

u
lt
 S

e
rv

i
2

7
.7

9
1

0
-5

0
-5

9
0

0
-2

0
P

e
ri

o
d

ic
a

ls
 -

 A
d

u
lt
 S

e
rv

5
.9

9
1

0
-5

0
-5

8
6

3
-3

0
B

o
o

k
s
 -

 Y
o

u
th

 S
e

rv
9

5
.0

8
1

0
-6

0
-5

9
3

1
-3

0
P

ro
g

ra
m

s
 -

 Y
o

u
th

5
4

9
.9

1
1

0
-4

8
-5

8
2

3
-3

0
M

in
o

r 
E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
- 

Y
o

u
th

4
8

.0
9

1
0

-6
0

-5
9

4
0

-3
0

R
e

a
d

e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 -

 Y
o

u
th

 
8

7
.0

1
1

0
-2

5
-5

7
1

6
-0

0
K

it
c
h

e
n

 S
u

p
p

lie
s

3
4

.6
0

1
0

-2
5

-5
7

1
3

-0
0

O
ff

ic
e

 S
u

p
p

lie
s

1
0

8
.2

4
1

0
-4

0
-5

7
8

7
-0

0
S

ta
ff

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

6
1

.2
4

1
0

-8
0

-5
9

8
1

-8
0

R
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
 -

 P
e

r 
C

a
p

it
a

 
2

4
4

.0
2

1
0

-2
5

-5
7

1
7

-0
0

P
ro

c
e

s
s
in

g
 S

u
p

p
lie

s
4

5
.7

0
1

0
-4

8
-5

8
2

3
-5

0
M

in
o

r 
E

q
u

ip
 -

 T
e

c
h

 S
e

rv
i

3
8

.6
2

1
0

-4
8

-5
8

0
4

-1
0

F
a

c
ili

ty
1

5
.9

9
A

m
a

z
o

n
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
1

0
-0

0
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

2
,5

7
2

.9
3

B
e

a
r 

L
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
e

1
5

9
1

2
L

a
n

d
s
c
a

p
in

g
1

0
-2

0
-5

6
6

2
-0

0
M

a
in

t 
C

o
n

tr
. 

- 
L

a
n

d
s
c
a

p
1

,1
3

4
.0

0
B

e
a

r 
L

a
n

d
s
c
a

p
e

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
,1

3
4

.0
0

B
e

a
r 

L
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
e

1
6

0
1

1
S

n
o

w
 R

e
m

o
v
a

l 
&

 S
a

lt
in

g
1

0
-2

0
-5

6
6

4
-0

0
M

a
in

t/
R

e
p

a
ir

s
-N

o
n

 C
o

n
tr

4
0

0
.0

0
B

e
a

r 
L

a
n

d
s
c
a

p
e

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

4
0

0
.0

0

C
D

W
G

A
G

6
F

J
6

K
W

a
s
te

 T
o

n
e

r 
C

a
rt

ri
d

g
e

1
0

-4
8

-5
8

0
3

-1
0

T
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
4

4
.6

0
C

D
W

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
1

0
-0

0
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

4
4

.6
0

C
D

W
G

A
G

6
T

U
5
U

B
a

tt
e

ry
 B

a
c
k
u

p
1

0
-4

8
-5

8
0

3
-1

0
T

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
5

9
1

.3
0

C
D

W
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
1

0
-0

0
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

5
9

1
.3

0

C
D

W
G

A
G

7
F

F
1

Y
B

a
c
k
u

p
 S

e
rv

e
r

1
0

-4
8

-5
8

0
3

-1
0

T
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
9

,9
8

4
.0

0
C

D
W

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
1

0
-0

0
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

9
,9

8
4

.0
0

C
o

m
E

d
1

0
3

0
2

5
U

s
a

g
e

1
0

-2
0

-5
6

5
5

-0
0

U
ti
lit

ie
s
 -

 E
le

c
tr

ic
5

,5
9

8
.8

0
C

o
m

E
d

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

5
,5

9
8

.8
0

C
o

m
p

a
c
t 

D
is

c
 S

o
u

rc
8

3
0

1
2

P
ro

c
e

s
s
in

g
1

0
-2

5
-5

7
1

7
-0

0
P

ro
c
e

s
s
in

g
 S

u
p

p
lie

s
6

4
.7

6
C

o
m

p
a

c
t 

D
is

c
 S

o
u

rc
e

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

6
4

.7
6

C
o

m
p

a
c
t 

D
is

c
 S

o
u

rc
8

3
0

1
3

M
u
si

c 
C

D
s

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

9
5

-4
0

A
-V

 M
a

tl
s
 -

 A
d

u
lt
 S

e
rv

1
8

6
.9

4
C

o
m

p
a

c
t 

D
is

c
 S

o
u

rc
e

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
8

6
.9

4

19 



1
1
/1

2
/2

5
 a

t 
1
3
:1

2
:2

2
.2

6
P

a
g

e
: 

2

L
is

le
 L

ib
ra

ry
D

is
tr

ic
t 

2
0

2
5

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a
b

le
 -

 N
o

v
e
m

b
e
r 

1
9
, 
2
0
2
5

V
e

n
d

o
r 

ID
In

v
o

ic
e

/C
M

 #
L

in
e

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
A

c
c

o
u

n
t 

ID
A

c
c

o
u

n
t 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
D

e
b

it
 A

m
o

u
n

t
C

re
d

it
 A

m
o

u
n

t

C
o

m
p

a
c
t 

D
is

c
 S

o
u

rc
8

3
0

2
9

P
ro

c
e

s
s
in

g
1

0
-2

5
-5

7
1

7
-0

0
P

ro
c
e

s
s
in

g
 S

u
p

p
lie

s
1

6
6

.1
1

C
o

m
p

a
c
t 

D
is

c
 S

o
u

rc
e

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
6

6
.1

1

C
o

m
p

a
c
t 

D
is

c
 S

o
u

rc
8

3
0

3
0

M
u
si

c 
C

D
s

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

9
5

-4
0

A
-V

 M
a

tl
s
 -

 A
d

u
lt
 S

e
rv

3
6

9
.6

1
C

o
m

p
a

c
t 

D
is

c
 S

o
u

rc
e

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

3
6

9
.6

1

C
u

lli
g

a
n

 o
f 

W
h

e
a

to
n

1
0

3
1

2
5

W
a

te
r

1
0

-2
5

-5
7

1
6

-0
0

K
it
c
h

e
n

 S
u

p
p

lie
s

6
1

.9
4

C
u

lli
g

a
n

 o
f 

W
h

e
a

to
n

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

6
1

.9
4

D
e

m
c
o

7
7

1
9

4
1

4
B

o
o

k
 C

o
v
e

rs
1

0
-2

5
-5

7
1

7
-0

0
P

ro
c
e

s
s
in

g
 S

u
p

p
lie

s
3

1
4

.5
3

D
e

m
c
o

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

3
1

4
.5

3

D
is

c
o

u
n

t 
S

c
h

o
o

l
W

1
9

0
6

0
7

1
0

1
0

1
P

ro
g

ra
m

 S
u

p
p

lie
s

1
0

-6
0

-5
9

4
0

-3
0

R
e

a
d

e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 -

 Y
o

u
th

 
2

6
9

.2
7

D
is

c
o

u
n

t 
S

c
h

o
o

l 
S

u
p

p
ly

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

2
6

9
.2

7

E
B

S
C

O
1

8
0

7
8

1
1

A
n

n
u

a
l 
R

e
n

e
w

a
l

1
0

-5
0

-5
9

0
0

-2
0

P
e

ri
o

d
ic

a
ls

 -
 A

d
u

lt
 S

e
rv

1
3

,7
1

1
.2

6
E

B
S

C
O

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
3

,7
1

1
.2

6

E
B

S
C

O
1

8
0

7
8

1
2

A
n

n
u

a
l 
R

e
n

e
w

a
l

1
0

-5
0

-5
9

0
0

-3
0

P
e

ri
o

d
ic

a
ls

 -
 Y

o
u

th
1

8
4

.9
0

E
B

S
C

O
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
1

0
-0

0
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
8

4
.9

0

E
B

S
C

O
1

8
0

7
8

1
3

A
n

n
u

a
l 
R

e
n

e
w

a
l

1
0

-5
0

-5
9

0
0

-8
0

P
e

ri
o

d
ic

a
ls

 -
 P

ro
f.

 C
o

lle
c

1
,9

3
9

.5
9

E
B

S
C

O
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
1

0
-0

0
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
,9

3
9

.5
9

F
N

B
O

 B
ill

in
g

 -
 1

8
9

7
1

0
2

9
2

5
C

o
n

fe
re

n
c
e

s
, 

R
e

a
d

e
rs

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

1
0

-0
3

-4
5

4
0

-0
0

F
in

e
s

1
.1

0

1
0

-2
5

-5
7

1
3

-0
0

O
ff

ic
e

 S
u

p
p

lie
s

1
3

5
.3

2
1

0
-2

5
-5

7
1

4
-0

0
C

ir
c
. 

M
a

te
ri

a
l 
S

u
p

p
lie

s
9

0
.3

4
1

0
-3

5
-5

7
6

3
-0

0
O

th
e

r 
C

o
n

tr
 S

rv
c
s
-T

e
c
h

 
8

1
8

.2
0

1
0

-3
5

-5
7

6
4

-1
0

O
th

e
r 

C
o

n
tr

 S
rv

c
s
 -

 L
ib

ra
3

7
.6

7
1

0
-4

0
-5

7
8

5
-0

0
C

o
n

fe
re

n
c
e

s
 -

 S
ta

ff
1

7
8

.8
2

1
0

-4
0

-5
7

8
7

-0
0

S
ta

ff
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

4
2

8
.0

0
1

0
-5

0
-5

8
6

3
-2

0
L

it
e

ra
c
y
/E

S
L

8
0

.0
0

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

6
3

-3
0

B
o

o
k
s
 -

 Y
o

u
th

 S
e

rv
1

7
7

.2
0

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

9
5

-4
0

A
-V

 M
a

tl
s
 -

 A
d

u
lt
 S

e
rv

3
5

8
.7

7
1

0
-6

0
-5

9
3

1
-1

0
P

ro
g

ra
m

s
 -

 A
d

u
lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

2
4

1
.1

0
1

0
-6

0
-5

9
3

1
-3

0
P

ro
g

ra
m

s
 -

 Y
o

u
th

3
6

.0
2

1
0

-6
0

-5
9

3
1

-4
0

O
n

lin
e

 M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
1

2
9

.4
9

1
0

-6
0

-5
9

3
1

-5
0

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 R

e
la

ti
o

n
s

4
6

.1
7

1
0

-6
0

-5
9

4
0

-1
0

R
e

a
d

e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 -

 A
d

u
lt
 

1
,6

9
8

.1
3

1
0

-6
0

-5
9

4
0

-3
0

R
e

a
d

e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 -

 Y
o

u
th

 
5

1
1

.2
1

F
N

B
O

 B
ill

in
g

 A
c
c
o

u
n

t
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
1

0
-0

0
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

4
,9

6
7

.5
4

G
a

rv
in

 G
a

rd
e

n
s

5
1

3
7

P
ro

g
ra

m
: 

H
o

lid
a

y
 F

lo
ra

l
A

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
1

0
-6

0
-5

9
3

1
-1

0
P

ro
g

ra
m

s
 -

 A
d

u
lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

3
7

5
.0

0

G
a

rv
in

 G
a

rd
e

n
s

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

3
7

5
.0

0

G
ro

o
t

1
5

3
9

3
4

0
7

T
0

9
8

R
u

b
b

is
h

1
0

-2
0

-5
6

6
5

-0
0

R
u

b
b

is
h

 R
e

m
o

v
a

l
3

2
7

.5
4

G
ro

o
t,

 I
n

c
.

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

3
2

7
.5

4

20 



1
1
/1

2
/2

5
 a

t 
1
3
:1

2
:2

2
.2

8
P

a
g

e
: 

3

L
is

le
 L

ib
ra

ry
D

is
tr

ic
t 

2
0

2
5

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a
b

le
 -

 N
o

v
e
m

b
e
r 

1
9
, 
2
0
2
5

V
e

n
d

o
r 

ID
In

v
o

ic
e

/C
M

 #
L

in
e

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
A

c
c

o
u

n
t 

ID
A

c
c

o
u

n
t 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
D

e
b

it
 A

m
o

u
n

t
C

re
d

it
 A

m
o

u
n

t

IH
L

S
 -

 O
C

L
C

3
3

4
7

9
W

e
b
d
e
w

e
y

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

7
2

-1
0

D
b

a
s
e

s
 -

 P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l
2

1
4

.4
5

IH
L

S
 -

 O
C

L
C

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

2
1

4
.4

5

In
g

ra
m

1
1

0
1

2
5

B
o

o
k
s
 &

 P
ro

c
e

s
s
in

g
1

0
-5

0
-5

8
6

5
-1

0
B

o
o

k
s
 -

 A
d

u
lt
/T

e
e

n
 F

ic
ti

5
,8

9
1

.7
3

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

6
4

-1
0

B
o

o
k
s
 -

 N
o

n
 F

ic
ti
o

n
5

,6
5

4
.6

2
1

0
-5

0
-5

8
6

7
-2

0
R

e
f 

B
o

o
k
s
 -

 A
d

u
lt
 S

e
rv

1
6

.1
6

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

6
3

-3
0

B
o

o
k
s
 -

 Y
o

u
th

 S
e

rv
2

,6
5

3
.6

8
1

0
-2

5
-5

7
1

7
-0

0
P

ro
c
e

s
s
in

g
 S

u
p

p
lie

s
2

,1
3

9
.8

6
In

g
ra

m
 L

ib
ra

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
1

0
-0

0
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
6

,3
5

6
.0

5

In
g

ra
m

 E
x
p

re
s
s

1
0

3
1

2
5

B
o

o
k
s

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

6
5

-1
0

B
o

o
k
s
 -

 A
d

u
lt
/T

e
e

n
 F

ic
ti

5
8

9
.0

0
1

0
-5

0
-5

8
6

3
-3

0
B

o
o

k
s
 -

 Y
o

u
th

 S
e

rv
5

8
.7

5
1

0
-5

0
-5

8
6

4
-1

0
B

o
o

k
s
 -

 N
o

n
 F

ic
ti
o

n
9

9
.5

8
In

g
ra

m
 L

ib
ra

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

In
c
.

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

7
4

7
.3

3

J
 a

n
d

 J
 T

re
e

E
3

7
7

3
B

u
s
h

 P
la

n
ti
n

g
1

0
-2

0
-5

6
6

4
-0

0
M

a
in

t/
R

e
p

a
ir

s
-N

o
n

 C
o

n
tr

3
8

7
.0

0
J
 a

n
d

 J
 T

re
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
1

0
-0

0
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

3
8

7
.0

0

J
im

 D
h

a
m

e
r 

P
lu

m
b

in
1

4
7

9
3

8
P

ip
e

 S
c
a

lin
g

 A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t
1

0
-2

0
-5

6
6

4
-0

0
M

a
in

t/
R

e
p

a
ir

s
-N

o
n

 C
o

n
tr

1
9

8
.0

0
J
im

 D
h

a
m

e
r 

P
lu

m
b

in
g

 &
S

e
w

e
r

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
9

8
.0

0

J
u

n
io

r 
L

ib
ra

ry
 G

u
ild

7
2

3
3

2
0

B
o

o
k
s

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

6
3

-3
0

B
o

o
k
s
 -

 Y
o

u
th

 S
e

rv
2

0
0

.4
0

J
u

n
io

r 
L

ib
ra

ry
 G

u
ild

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

2
0

0
.4

0

K
a

n
o

p
y

4
7

6
3

3
1

K
a

n
o

p
y

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

9
9

-2
0

D
ig

it
a

l 
C

o
n

te
n

t
5

2
5

.0
0

K
a

n
o

p
y
, 

In
c
.

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

5
2

5
.0

0

K
o

n
ic

a
 M

in
o

lt
a

 B
u

s
in

5
0

4
9

4
3

5
4

6
#

C
4

5
8

 U
s
a

g
e

1
0

-4
8

-5
8

4
5

-0
0

E
q

u
ip

 M
a

in
t/

R
e

p
r-

C
o

n
tr

-
1

9
7

.1
3

K
o

n
ic

a
 M

in
o

lt
a

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s

S
o

lu
ti
o

n
s

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
9

7
.1

3

K
o

n
ic

a
 M

in
o

lt
a

 B
u

s
in

9
0

1
0

6
6

1
6

1
7

P
ri

n
te

r 
M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

1
0

-4
8

-5
8

4
5

-0
0

E
q

u
ip

 M
a

in
t/

R
e

p
r-

C
o

n
tr

-
1

6
0

.0
0

K
o

n
ic

a
 M

in
o

lt
a

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s

S
o

lu
ti
o

n
s

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
6

0
.0

0

K
o

n
ic

a
 M

in
o

lt
a

 B
u

s
in

9
0

1
0

6
6

2
1

5
5

#
C

2
5

1
 U

s
a

g
e

1
0

-4
8

-5
8

4
5

-0
0

E
q

u
ip

 M
a

in
t/

R
e

p
r-

C
o

n
tr

-
6

9
.0

0
K

o
n

ic
a

 M
in

o
lt
a

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s

S
o

lu
ti
o

n
s

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

6
9

.0
0

L
a

u
te

rb
a

c
h

 &
 A

m
e

n
1

0
7

6
4

5
O

P
E

B
 R

e
p

o
rt

1
0

-3
5

-5
7

6
4

-1
0

O
th

e
r 

C
o

n
tr

 S
rv

c
s
 -

 L
ib

ra
1

,0
1

0
.0

0
L

a
u

te
rb

a
c
h

 &
 A

m
e

n
, 

L
L

P
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
1

0
-0

0
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
,0

1
0

.0
0

L
IM

R
IC

C
 P

H
IP

 H
e
a
lt

1
1

0
6

2
5

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

P
re

m
iu

m
1

0
-1

0
-5

6
2

1
-1

0
H

o
s
p

. 
In

s
. 

- 
A

d
m

in
5

,3
4

0
.7

7
1

0
-1

0
-5

6
2

1
-2

0
H

o
s
p

. 
In

s
. 

- 
A

d
u

lt
 S

e
rv

.
9

,8
8

8
.2

1
1

0
-1

0
-5

6
2

1
-3

0
H

o
s
p

. 
In

s
. 

- 
Y

S
4

,0
8

6
.5

3
1

0
-1

0
-5

6
2

1
-5

0
H

o
s
p

. 
In

s
. 

- 
T

e
c
h

3
,4

4
5

.0
6

1
0

-1
0

-5
6

2
1

-6
0

H
o

s
p

. 
In

s
. 

- 
C

ir
c

7
,4

3
1

.3
3

L
IM

R
IC

C
 P

H
IP

 H
e
a
lth

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

3
0

,1
9

1
.9

0

21 



1
1
/1

2
/2

5
 a

t 
1
3
:1

2
:2

2
.3

0
P

a
g

e
: 

4

L
is

le
 L

ib
ra

ry
D

is
tr

ic
t 

2
0

2
5

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a
b

le
 -

 N
o

v
e
m

b
e
r 

1
9
, 
2
0
2
5

V
e

n
d

o
r 

ID
In

v
o

ic
e

/C
M

 #
L

in
e

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
A

c
c

o
u

n
t 

ID
A

c
c

o
u

n
t 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
D

e
b

it
 A

m
o

u
n

t
C

re
d

it
 A

m
o

u
n

t

M
id

w
e
st

 T
a
p
e

5
0

7
9

6
7

3
2

5
H

o
o

p
la

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

9
9

-2
0

D
ig

it
a

l 
C

o
n

te
n

t
8

,0
3

4
.4

5
M

id
w

e
st

 T
a
p
e

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

8
,0

3
4

.4
5

M
id

w
e
st

 T
a
p
e
 2

5
1
6

1
1

0
3

2
5

C
D

 B
o

o
k
s

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

9
5

-4
0

A
-V

 M
a

tl
s
 -

 A
d

u
lt
 S

e
rv

1
,5

3
3

.4
4

M
id

w
e

s
t 

T
a

p
e

 (
2

5
1

6
)

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
,5

3
3

.4
4

M
id

w
e
st

 T
a
p
e
 7

2
8
8

1
1

0
3

2
5

D
V

D
s
, 

B
lu

-r
a

y
s
 &

 P
ro

c
e

s
s
in

g
1

0
-5

0
-5

8
9

5
-4

0
A

-V
 M

a
tl
s
 -

 A
d

u
lt
 S

e
rv

1
,8

8
9

.2
4

1
0

-2
5

-5
7

1
7

-0
0

P
ro

c
e

s
s
in

g
 S

u
p

p
lie

s
4

8
7

.1
5

M
id

w
e

s
t 

T
a

p
e

 (
7

2
8

8
)

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

2
,3

7
6

.3
9

M
id

w
e
st

 T
a
p
e
 7

2
8
9

1
1

0
3

2
5

D
V

D
s
, 

B
lu

-r
a

y
s
 &

 P
ro

c
e

s
s
in

g
1

0
-5

0
-5

8
9

5
-4

0
A

-V
 M

a
tl
s
 -

 A
d

u
lt
 S

e
rv

9
.9

9
1

0
-2

5
-5

7
1

7
-0

0
P

ro
c
e

s
s
in

g
 S

u
p

p
lie

s
7

6
6

.9
7

M
id

w
e

s
t 

T
a

p
e

 (
7

2
8

9
)

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

7
7

6
.9

6

M
id

w
e
st

 T
a
p
e
 7

2
9
1

1
1

0
3

2
5

D
V

D
s
, 

B
lu

-r
a

y
s
 &

 C
D

 B
o

o
k
s

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

9
0

-3
0

A
-V

 M
a
tls

 -
 Y

o
u
th

 S
e
rv

1
2

7
.4

3
M

id
w

e
s
t 

T
a

p
e

 (
7

2
9

1
)

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
2

7
.4

3

O
ve

rD
ri
ve

2
5

3
3

6
2

7
8

A
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

9
9

-2
0

D
ig

it
a

l 
C

o
n

te
n

t
1

3
0

.0
0

O
v
e

rD
ri

v
e

, 
In

c
.

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
3

0
.0

0

O
ve

rD
ri
ve

2
5

3
4

0
2

7
8

C
P

C
1

0
-5

0
-5

8
9

9
-2

0
D

ig
it
a

l 
C

o
n

te
n

t
5

9
1

.4
9

O
v
e

rD
ri

v
e

, 
In

c
.

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

5
9

1
.4

9

O
ve

rD
ri
ve

2
5

3
4

0
3

3
6

C
P

C
1

0
-5

0
-5

8
9

9
-2

0
D

ig
it
a

l 
C

o
n

te
n

t
5

.5
0

O
v
e

rD
ri

v
e

, 
In

c
.

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

5
.5

0

O
ve

rD
ri
ve

2
5

3
4

1
5

3
7

C
P

C
1

0
-5

0
-5

8
9

9
-2

0
D

ig
it
a

l 
C

o
n

te
n

t
2

1
.5

8
O

v
e

rD
ri

v
e

, 
In

c
.

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

2
1

.5
8

O
ve

rD
ri
ve

2
5

3
4

2
2

8
4

C
P

C
1

0
-5

0
-5

8
9

9
-2

0
D

ig
it
a

l 
C

o
n

te
n

t
1

2
4

.0
0

O
v
e

rD
ri

v
e

, 
In

c
.

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
2

4
.0

0

O
ve

rD
ri
ve

2
5

3
4

2
4

1
1

C
P

C
1

0
-5

0
-5

8
9

9
-2

0
D

ig
it
a

l 
C

o
n

te
n

t
5

.5
0

O
v
e

rD
ri

v
e

, 
In

c
.

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

5
.5

0

O
ve

rD
ri
ve

2
5

3
4

3
5

7
8

C
P

C
1

0
-5

0
-5

8
9

9
-2

0
D

ig
it
a

l 
C

o
n

te
n

t
5

9
6

.0
5

O
v
e

rD
ri

v
e

, 
In

c
.

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

5
9

6
.0

5

O
ve

rD
ri
ve

2
5

3
5

1
1

5
1

A
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

9
9

-2
0

D
ig

it
a

l 
C

o
n

te
n

t
2

,5
7

3
.1

0
O

v
e

rD
ri

v
e

, 
In

c
.

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

2
,5

7
3

.1
0

P
la

ya
w

a
y

5
1

1
8

3
2

B
o

o
k
s

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

6
3

-3
0

B
o

o
k
s
 -

 Y
o

u
th

 S
e

rv
8

3
5

.9
5

P
la

y
a

w
a

y
 P

ro
d

u
c
ts

 L
L

C
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
1

0
-0

0
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

8
3

5
.9

5

R
A

IL
S

1
5

1
4

2
C

h
ic

a
g

o
 T

ri
b

u
n

e
 O

n
lin

e
1

0
-5

0
-5

8
7

2
-1

0
D

b
a

s
e

s
 -

 P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l
4

0
5

.0
0

R
A

IL
S

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

4
0

5
.0

0

S
ik

ic
h

1
1

4
8

3
3

A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
1

0
-3

5
-5

7
6

4
-1

0
O

th
e

r 
C

o
n

tr
 S

rv
c
s
 -

 L
ib

ra
4

,1
6

6
.0

0
S

ik
ic

h
 L

L
P

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

4
,1

6
6

.0
0

S
p

ic
h

e
r,

 N
o

e
lle

1
0

1
4

2
5

-1
IL

A
 C

o
n

fe
re

n
c
e

1
0

-4
0

-5
7

8
5

-0
0

C
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 -

 S
ta

ff
1

6
4

.9
8

22 



1
1
/1

2
/2

5
 a

t 
1
3
:1

2
:2

2
.3

3
P

a
g

e
: 

5

L
is

le
 L

ib
ra

ry
D

is
tr

ic
t 

2
0

2
5

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a
b

le
 -

 N
o

v
e
m

b
e
r 

1
9
, 
2
0
2
5

V
e

n
d

o
r 

ID
In

v
o

ic
e

/C
M

 #
L

in
e

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
A

c
c

o
u

n
t 

ID
A

c
c

o
u

n
t 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
D

e
b

it
 A

m
o

u
n

t
C

re
d

it
 A

m
o

u
n

t

N
o

e
lle

 S
p

ic
h

e
r

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
6

4
.9

8

S
p

ic
h

e
r,

 N
o

e
lle

1
0

1
4

2
5

-2
IL

A
 C

o
n

fe
re

n
c
e

1
0

-4
0

-5
7

8
5

-0
0

C
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 -

 S
ta

ff
5

0
.9

6
N

o
e

lle
 S

p
ic

h
e

r
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
1

0
-0

0
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

5
0

.9
6

S
u

b
u

rb
a

n
 D

o
o

r
IN

5
8

5
9

0
0

R
e

p
a

ir
 J

a
m

m
e

d
 L

o
c
k
s
e

t
1

0
-2

0
-5

6
6

4
-0

0
M

a
in

t/
R

e
p

a
ir

s
-N

o
n

 C
o

n
tr

1
3

2
.0

0
S

u
b

u
rb

a
n

 D
o

o
r 

C
h

e
c
k
 &

L
o

c
k
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
1

0
-0

0
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
3

2
.0

0

T
E

R
R

A
 E

n
g

in
e

e
ri

n
g

2
4

8
0

1
P

ro
je

c
t 

P
la

n
n

in
g

7
0

-6
5

-5
6

8
5

-0
0

L
o

t 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

je
c
t

5
,4

5
1

.7
0

T
E

R
R

A
 E

n
g

in
e

e
ri

n
g

 L
T

D
.

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

5
,4

5
1

.7
0

T
h

o
m

a
s
 K

lis
e

2
5

1
3

0
V

id
e

o
 G

a
m

e
s

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

9
5

-4
0

A
-V

 M
a

tl
s
 -

 A
d

u
lt
 S

e
rv

1
,2

1
1

.1
1

T
h

o
m

a
s
 K

lis
e

 /
 C

ri
m

s
o

n
M

u
lt
im

e
d

ia
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
1

0
-0

0
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
,2

1
1

.1
1

T
h

o
m

a
s
 K

lis
e

2
5

1
3

1
V

id
e

o
 G

a
m

e
s

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

9
0

-3
0

A
-V

 M
a
tls

 -
 Y

o
u
th

 S
e
rv

1
4

0
.0

0
T

h
o

m
a

s
 K

lis
e

 /
 C

ri
m

s
o

n
M

u
lt
im

e
d

ia
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
1

0
-0

0
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
4

0
.0

0

T
h

o
m

a
s
 K

lis
e

2
5

1
3

2
V

id
e

o
 G

a
m

e
s

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

9
0

-3
0

A
-V

 M
a
tls

 -
 Y

o
u
th

 S
e
rv

2
0

7
.0

3
T

h
o

m
a

s
 K

lis
e

 /
 C

ri
m

s
o

n
M

u
lt
im

e
d

ia
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
1

0
-0

0
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

2
0

7
.0

3

U
n

iq
u

e
6

1
4

5
9

7
5

O
c
to

b
e

r 
P

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

1
0

-3
5

-5
7

6
1

-0
0

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 A

g
e

n
c
y

1
1

3
.8

5
U

n
iq

u
e

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
1

3
.8

5

W
h

e
a

to
n

 P
u

b
lic

3
5

1
4

3
0

1
1

1
3

4
1

1
8

R
e

c
ip

ro
c
a

l 
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

 L
o

s
s

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

6
4

-1
0

B
o

o
k
s
 -

 N
o

n
 F

ic
ti
o

n
3

0
.0

0
W

h
e

a
to

n
 P

u
b

lic
 L

ib
ra

ry
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
1

0
-0

0
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

3
0

.0
0

1
2

7
,0

6
5

.5
2

1
2

7
,0

6
5

.5
2

23 



P
R

IO
R

 M
O

N
T

H
S

 B
IL

L
S

 P
A

ID
 B

E
T

W
E

E
N

 O
C

T
O

B
E

R
 2

0
2
5
 A

N
D

 N
O

V
E

M
B

E
R

 2
0
2
5

B
O

A
R

D
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
S

 T
H

A
T

 N
E

E
D

 A
P

P
R

O
V

A
L

 A
T

 T
H

IS
 T

IM
E

.

C
h

e
c
k
 #

V
e
n

d
o

r
A

m
o

u
n

t

H
S

A
S

a
la

ri
e
s
 1

0
/1

5
/2

0
2
5

7
3
1
0
5
.1

1

H
S

A
IL

 D
e
p
t.
 o

f 
R

e
v
e
n
u
e

S
ta

te
 T

a
x
 W

it
h
h
e
ld

4
6
2
8
.7

1

A
u
to

 W
/D

H
o
w

a
rd

 S
im

o
n
 &

 A
s
s
o
c
ia

te
s

P
R

 S
e
rv

. 
- 

1
0
/1

5
/2

0
2
5

9
4
2
.8

7

H
S

A
E

F
T

P
S

/E
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

 T
a
x
 P

a
y
m

e
n
t 

1
0
/1

5
/2

0
2
5

  
  
  
F

e
d
 T

a
x
  
  
  
  
  
$
8
5
0
6
.7

3
2
3
6
5
9
.1

4

  
  
  
F

IC
A

  
 W

/H
  
  
 $

7
5
7
6
.2

1

  
  
  
F

IC
A

  
 L

ib
  
  
  
 $

7
5
7
6
.2

0

 

H
S

A
S

a
la

ri
e
s
 1

0
/3

1
/2

0
2
5

7
0
9
0
1
.0

0

H
S

A
IL

 D
e
p
t.
 o

f 
R

e
v
e
n
u
e

S
ta

te
 T

a
x
 W

it
h
h
e
ld

4
4
9
0
.6

0

A
u
to

 W
/D

H
o
w

a
rd

 S
im

o
n
 &

 A
s
s
o
c
ia

te
s

P
R

 S
e
rv

. 
- 

1
0
/3

1
/2

0
2
5

4
0
.3

2

H
S

A
E

F
T

P
S

/E
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

 T
a
x
 P

a
y
m

e
n
t 

1
0
/3

1
/2

0
2
5

  
 F

e
d
 T

a
x
  
  
  
  
 $

8
2
7
7
.3

7
2
2
9
9
2
.8

7

  
 F

IC
A

  
W

/H
  
  
 $

7
3
5
7
.7

3

  
 F

IC
A

  
 L

ib
  
  
  
$
7
3
5
7
.7

7

W
ir
e
d

IM
R

F
IM

R
F

 W
/H

  
  

  
  

$
1
0
0
9
0
.4

8
1
8
0
8
9
.0

3

IM
R

F
 L

ib
  

  
  

  
  

$
7
9
9
8
.5

5

 
 

 S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l 
  

2
1
8
8
4
9
.6

5

C
h

e
c
k
 #

V
e
n

d
o

r
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

A
m

o
u

n
t

9
3
7
9

1
 S

o
u
rc

e
 M

e
c
h
a
n
ic

a
l,
 I
n
c
.

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 M

a
in

t.
, 
V

a
lv

e
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
&

 W
a
te

r 
P

u
m

p
 R

e
b
u
ild

7
,8

0
7
.5

3

9
3
8
0

A
F

L
A

C
 (

G
6
9
2
0
)

P
a
y
ro

ll 
W

it
h
h
o
ld

in
g

1
1
7
.4

0

9
3
8
1

A
lb

e
rt

s
o
n
s
 |
 S

a
fe

w
a
y

S
u
p
p
lie

s
3
7
.5

4

9
3
8
2

L
u
is

a
 B

u
e
h
le

r
P

ro
g
ra

m
: 

W
ri
te

r'
s
 W

o
rk

s
h
o
p

1
7
5
.0

0

9
3
8
3

C
C

S
P

ro
je

c
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

7
,2

0
0
.0

0

9
3
8
4

C
o
m

p
a
c
t 
D

is
c
 S

o
u
rc

e
M

u
s
ic

 C
D

s
 &

 P
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
5
0
6
.2

5

9
3
8
5

C
u

lli
g

a
n

 o
f 

W
h

e
a

to
n

W
a
te

r
6
2
.9

0

9
3
8
6

L
o
ri
 C

u
m

m
in

s
IL

A
 C

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e

1
4
9
.2

8

9
3
8
7

D
a
ily

 H
e
ra

ld
S

u
b
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 t
h
ru

 4
/2

2
/2

6
8
9
2
.8

0

9
3
8
8

D
e

lt
a

 D
e

n
ta

l 
- 

R
is

k
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

P
re

m
iu

m
1
,9

0
2
.1

4

9
3
8
9

D
e
m

c
o

B
a
rc

o
d
e
s

1
,4

2
0
.2

7

9
3
9
0

E
c
o
 C

le
a
n
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

J
a
n
it
o
ri
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 -

 S
e
p
te

m
b

e
r 

&
 O

c
to

b
e
r

6
,3

0
4
.0

0

9
3
9
1

E
n
v
is

io
n
W

a
re

, 
In

c
.

W
ir
e
le

s
s
 P

ri
n
ti
n
g

6
5
5
.9

9

9
3
9
2

G
a
rv

e
y
's

 O
ff

ic
e
 P

ro
d
u
c
ts

B
o
x
e
s

9
9
.9

8

24 



9
3
9
3

L
e
s
lie

 G
o
d
d
a
rd

P
ro

g
ra

m
: 

R
e
m

e
m

b
e
ri
n
g
 M

a
rs

h
a

ll 
F

ie
ld

's
4
0
0
.0

0

9
3
9
4

M
e
a
g
a
n
 H

o
llo

m
a
n

IL
A

 C
o
n
fe

re
n
c
e

6
7
.1

2

9
3
9
5

H
o
m

e
 D

e
p
o
t 
C

re
d
it
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

C
h

a
rg

e
r 

R
e
p

a
ir

9
.9

8

9
3
9
6

Il
lin

o
is

 L
ib

ra
ry

 A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n

A
n
n
u
a
l 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

s
 -

 S
ta

ff
 &

 L
L
D

8
5
0
.0

0

9
3
9
7

Il
lin

o
is

 T
E

S
O

L
/B

E
A

n
n
u
a
l 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 -
 D

e
m

a
s

4
0
.0

0

9
3
9
8

In
n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
 I
n
te

rf
a
c
e
s

A
d
d
 D

ri
v
e
 U

p
 W

in
d
o
w

1
,2

0
0
.0

0

9
3
9
9

In
te

ra
c
ti
v
e
 B

u
ild

in
g
 S

o
lu

ti
o
n
s

C
h

a
n

g
e
 O

rd
e

r 
#
2

 -
 F

re
e

z
e
s
ta

t 
&

 P
a

y
 A

p
p

 #
7

3
,8

7
7
.1

0

9
4
0
0

J
o
h
n
s
o
n
 C

o
n
tr

o
ls

 S
e
c
u
ri
ty

 S
o
lu

ti
o
n
s

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

1
,1

9
6
.9

6

9
4
0
1

K
o
n
ic

a
 M

in
o
lt
a
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

o
lu

ti
o
n
s

P
ri
n
te

r 
M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

1
4
9
.5

2

9
4
0
2

K
o
n
ic

a
 M

in
o
lt
a
 P

re
m

ie
r 

F
in

a
n
c
e

#
C

2
5
1
 &

 #
C

3
0
1
 L

e
a
s
e

4
1
2
.6

6

9
4
0
3

L
ib

ra
ri
a

B
o
o
k
s

1
,6

9
1
.9

6

9
4
0
4

L
a
u
ra

 M
u
rf

f
IL

A
 C

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 &

 A
s
p
e
n
 C

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e

8
2
.5

6

9
4
0
5

N
C

P
E

R
S

 G
ro

u
p

 L
If

e
 I

n
s

P
a
y
ro

ll 
W

it
h
h
o
ld

in
g

3
2
.0

0

9
4
0
6

N
IC

O
R

U
s
a

g
e

7
1
5
.2

1

9
4
0
7

O
v
e
rD

ri
v
e
, 
In

c
.

A
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e

6
,1

3
8
.9

3

9
4
0
8

P
a
d
d
o
c
k
 P

u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
s

B
 &

 A
 P

u
b
lis

h
in

g
7
3
6
.5

8

9
4
0
9

T
h
e
 P

e
n
w

o
rt

h
y
 C

o
m

p
a
n
y

B
o
o
k
s

1
,9

8
7
.4

6

9
4
1
0

P
e
re

g
ri
n
e
, 
S

ti
m

e
, 
N

e
w

m
a
n
, 
R

it
z
m

a
n

L
e
g
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

5
6
2
.5

0

9
4
1
1

P
ri
m

a
s
 B

re
n
n
a
n
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
in

g
P

ro
g
ra

m
: 

C
o
m

p
a
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 G

e
n
e

a
lo

g
y
 B

ig
 F

o
u

r
2
5
0
.0

0

9
4
1
2

S
ta

p
le

s
 A

d
v
a
n
ta

g
e

S
u
p
p
lie

s
1
,1

2
1
.0

2

9
4
1
3

T
e
rm

in
ix

 A
n
d
e
rs

o
n

P
e
s
t 
C

o
n
tr

o
l

1
8
8
.3

6

9
4
1
4

T
h
o
m

a
s
 K

lis
e
 /
 C

ri
m

s
o
n
 M

u
lt
im

e
d
ia

V
id

e
o
 G

a
m

e
s

6
6
2
.5

1

9
4
1
5

U
n

iq
u

e
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

P
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

2
5
.3

0

9
4
1
6

A
n
d
re

a
 V

a
rr

y
R

A
IL

S
 T

S
 N

e
tw

o
rk

in
g

2
4
.9

8

9
4
1
7

V
e
ri
z
o
n

U
s
a

g
e

1
,7

5
7
.9

6

9
4
1
8

V
ill

a
g
e
 o

f 
L
is

le
M

o
n
th

ly
 I

n
te

rn
e
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

4
5
0
.0

0

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l
5
1
,9

6
1
.7

5
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
T

O
T

A
L

2
7
0
,8

1
1
.4

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

25 



M
o

n
th

ly
 C

ir
cu

la
ti

o
n

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

2
5

O
ct

-2
5

Y
T

D
 F

Y
 2

4
/2

5
Y

T
D

 F
Y

 2
5

/2
6

Y
T

D
 %

 C
h

an
ge

C
h

ec
ko

u
ts

R
e

n
e

w
al

s
TO

TA
LS

A
d

u
lt

 N
o

n
-P

ri
n

t
2

,1
0

4
2

,1
0

9
4

,2
1

3
1

8
,7

9
1

1
7

,4
0

4
-7

.3
8

%

A
d

u
lt

 P
ri

n
t

4
,4

7
0

3
,7

5
5

8
,2

2
5

3
5

,7
3

4
3

5
,7

5
6

0
.0

6
%

A
d

u
lt

 T
o

ta
l

6
,5

7
4

5
,8

6
4

1
2

,4
3

8
5

4
,5

2
5

5
3

,1
6

0
-2

.5
0

%
YS

 N
o

n
-P

ri
n

t
4

3
7

7
1

7
1

,1
5

4
5

,9
7

5
6

,0
2

5
0

.8
4

%

YS
 P

ri
n

t
7

,5
9

5
7

,5
8

6
1

5
,1

8
1

6
0

,4
7

9
6

5
,1

9
4

7
.8

0
%

To
ta

l Y
S

8
,0

3
2

8
,3

0
3

1
6

,3
3

5
6

6
,4

5
4

7
1

,2
1

9
7

.1
7

%

D
ig

it
al

 M
ed

ia
O

ve
rd

ri
ve

5
,4

2
7

5
,4

2
7

2
2

,4
4

9
2

2
,5

5
9

0
.4

9
%

h
o

o
p

la
3

,6
7

7
3

,6
7

7
1

1
,2

6
1

1
4

,6
1

5
2

9
.7

8
%

O
ve

rd
ri

ve
 M

ag
az

in
es

9
5

8
9

5
8

1
,9

3
2

3
,6

6
0

8
9

.4
4

%

P
re

ss
R

e
ad

er
1

6
6

1
6

6
1

,3
3

2
1

,5
4

9
1

6
.2

9
%

K
an

o
p

y
4

9
4

4
9

4
1

,5
4

8
1

,6
4

6
6

.3
3

%

To
ta

l D
ig

it
al

1
0

,7
2

2
0

1
0

,7
2

2
3

8
,5

2
2

4
4

,0
2

9
1

4
.3

0
%

Su
b

to
ta

l P
ri

n
t 

+ 
N

o
n

-P
ri

n
t/

D
ig

it
al

2
5

,3
2

8
1

4
,1

6
7

3
9

,4
9

5
1

5
9

,5
0

1
1

6
8

,4
0

8
5

.5
8

%

C
o

m
p

u
te

r/
Te

ch
 S

es
si

o
n

s 
Lo

gi
n

s
1

,5
9

8
1

,5
9

8
5

,4
3

8
5

,9
0

3
8

.5
5

%

D
at

ab
as

e 
U

sa
ge

/U
n

iq
u

e 
Lo

gi
n

s
6

,1
0

8
6

,1
0

8
2

3
,1

2
6

2
5

,4
9

0
1

0
.2

2
%

W
ir

el
es

s 
U

se
1

,5
3

0
1

,5
3

0
5

,3
5

1
5

,8
8

9
1

0
.0

5
%

Sc
an

n
X

 s
es

si
o

n
s/

jo
b

s
2

8
4

2
8

4
1

,6
3

4
1

,1
4

6
-2

9
.8

7
%

M
u

se
u

m
 A

d
ve

n
tu

re
 P

as
se

s
3

9
3

9
1

9
7

1
9

9
1

.0
2

%

To
ta

l I
T/

R
es

o
u

rc
e 

Se
ss

io
n

s
9

,5
5

9
0

9
,5

5
9

3
5

,7
4

6
3

8
,6

2
7

8
.0

6
%

To
ta

l C
ir

cu
la

ti
o

n
3

4
,8

8
7

1
4

,1
6

7
4

9
,0

5
4

1
9

5
,2

4
7

2
0

7
,0

3
5

6
.0

4
%

B
o

rr
o

w
er

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

O
ct

 2
0

2
5

 T
o

ta
l

Y
T

D
 2

4
/2

5
Y

T
D

 2
5

/2
6

Y
T

D
 %

 C
h

an
ge

N
ew

 L
ib

ra
ry

 C
ar

d
s 

A
d

d
ed

1
4

3
6

0
3

6
2

4
3

.4
8

%

M
o

n
th

ly
 B

o
rr

o
w

e
rs

2
,7

2
7

1
1

,8
7

1
1

1
,5

5
2

-2
.6

9
%

To
ta

l #
 R

e
gi

st
er

ed
 B

o
rr

o
w

e
rs

1
2

,1
3

4
1

0
,6

1
0

1
2

,1
3

4
1

4
.3

6
%

In
te

rL
ib

ra
ry

 L
o

an
s

M
at

er
ia

ls
 S

en
t

3
7

1
9

5
1

9
7

1
.0

3
%

M
at

er
ia

ls
 R

ec
ei

ve
d

2
3

4
1

,3
8

3
1

,0
6

8
-2

2
.7

8
%

P
o

la
ri

s/
C

at
al

o
g 

H
o

ld
s

H
o

ld
s 

P
la

ce
d

3
,0

9
3

1
1

,8
9

3
1

1
,6

8
7

-1
.7

3
%

H
o

ld
s 

C
h

ec
ke

d
 O

u
t 

2
,4

9
4

9
,6

1
7

9
,6

7
2

0
.5

7
%

P
ic

k-
U

p
 W

in
d

o
w

 S
er

vi
ce

 S
ta

ts

# 
o

f 
P

at
ro

n
s/

U
se

rs
2

6
6

6
8

2
2

4
.2

4
%

# 
o

f 
It

e
m

s 
P

ic
ke

d
 U

p
/C

h
ec

ke
d

 O
u

t
5

2
1

3
9

1
7

4
2

5
.1

8
%

26 



Li
sl

e 
Li

b
ra

ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

- 
P

ro
gr

am
 a

n
d

 S
er

vi
ce

 S
ta

ti
st

ic
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 2
0

2
5

Li
b

ra
ry

 W
id

e
A

d
u

lt
Y

o
u

th
 

C
ir

c
Li

te
ra

cy
TO

TA
L

Y
TD

 F
Y

2
4

/2
5

Y
TD

 F
Y

2
5

/2
6

 %
 C

h
an

ge

Li
b

ra
ry

 E
ve

n
t 

St
at

is
ti

cs
 

St
af

f 
Fa

ci
lit

at
ed

 P
ro

gr
am

s
8

5
2

1
3

2
7

5
2

6
2

2
8

8
9

.9
2

%
A

tt
en

d
ee

s
5

7
1

,0
3

5
1

7
5

1
,1

1
4

3
,7

4
8

4
,0

6
8

8
.5

4
%

C
o

m
p

u
te

r/
Te

ch
n

o
lo

gy
 P

ro
gr

am
s

2
0

2
8

8
0

.0
0

%
A

tt
en

d
ee

s
7

0
7

7
0

1
1

6
6

5
.7

1
%

P
er

fo
rm

er
/S

p
ea

ke
r/

A
u

th
o

r
4

0
4

1
7

1
3

-2
3

.5
3

%
A

tt
en

d
ee

s
9

3
0

9
3

3
8

7
4

5
3

1
7

.0
5

%

LL
D

 E
ve

n
ts

 (
Su

m
R

d
, R

SG
, N

at
lL

ib
W

k,
 w

h
o

le
 L

ib
 e

ve
n

t)
0

0
1

1
0

.0
0

%
A

tt
en

d
ee

s
0

0
6

5
0

7
0

0
7

.6
9

%
To

ta
l N

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

P
ro

gr
am

s 
0

1
4

5
2

1
3

2
8

1
2

8
8

3
1

0
7

.6
4

%

To
ta

l P
at

ro
n

s 
Se

rv
ed

 b
y 

P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g
0

1
5

7
1

,0
3

5
1

7
5

1
,2

1
4

4
,8

5
5

5
,3

3
7

9
.9

3
%

R
ef

e
re

n
ce

 Q
u

es
ti

o
n

s
1

,2
6

3
1

,1
3

5
1

,4
6

8
3

,8
6

6
1

6
,0

4
1

1
7

,4
9

6
9

.0
7

%
V

o
lu

n
te

er
 H

o
u

rs
   

9
.5

0
2

5
.0

0
3

4
.5

0
5

7
9

.5
0

4
4

1
.0

0
-2

3
.9

0
%

.
N

o
ta

ry
 S

er
vi

ce
6

2
6

2
1

5
3

1
6

6
8

.5
0

%
O

u
tr

ea
ch

 S
er

vi
ce

 S
ta

ti
st

ic
s 

O
u

tr
ea

ch
 V

is
it

s 
0

1
0

0
1

0
3

8
4

5
1

8
.4

2
%

P
at

ro
n

s 
Se

rv
ed

 b
y 

O
u

tr
ea

ch
 V

is
it

s
0

2
5

4
0

2
5

4
2

,7
9

1
3

,5
0

8
2

5
.6

9
%

H
o

m
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
D

at
es

 
3

3
9

9
0

.0
0

%
P

at
ro

n
s 

Se
rv

ed
 v

ia
 H

o
m

e 
D

el
iv

er
y

1
4

3
1

4
3

3
8

7
4

2
1

8
.7

9
%

To
ta

l O
u

tr
ea

ch
 P

ro
gr

am
s

3
1

0
0

1
3

4
7

5
4

1
4

.8
9

%
To

ta
l P

at
ro

n
s 

Se
rv

ed
 w

it
h

 O
u

tr
ea

ch
 S

er
vi

ce
s

1
4

3
2

5
4

0
3

9
7

3
,1

7
8

3
,9

2
9

2
3

.6
3

%
C

iv
ic

 F
ac

ili
ty

 U
se

 
Li

te
ra

cy
/T

u
to

ri
n

g 
R

o
o

m
 U

se
 (

p
at

ro
n

 c
o

u
n

t)
3

2
1

2
1

1
3

5
1

1
.5

7
%

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
O

u
ts

id
e 

G
ro

u
p

s 
U

si
n

g 
M

ee
ti

n
g 

Sp
ac

e 
8

8
1

5
1

2
3

4
5

4
.9

7
%

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
G

in
kg

o
 &

 M
ap

le
 S

tu
d

y 
R

o
o

m
 R

es
er

va
ti

o
n

s
1

2
7

2
4

5
4

6
2

8
8

.5
7

%
P

at
ro

n
s 

En
te

ri
n

g 
B

u
ild

in
g

9
,9

1
4

4
1

,9
6

8
4

1
,9

6
9

0
.0

0
%

Fr
ie

n
d

's
 S

p
o

n
so

re
d

 P
ro

gr
am

s 
0

0
0

--
A

tt
en

d
ee

s
0

0
0

--
So

ci
al

 M
ed

ia
 U

se
Fa

ce
b

o
o

k 
(d

ai
ly

 p
ag

e 
co

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
)

5
0

3
2

,6
1

6
2

,4
8

6
-4

.9
7

%
X

 (
a.

k.
a.

 T
w

it
te

r)
 F

o
llo

w
e

rs
1

,0
1

2
1

,1
0

1
1

,0
1

2
-8

.0
8

%

In
st

ag
ra

m
 L

ik
es

4
6

4
1

,9
5

2
1

,9
2

6
-1

.3
3

%

Fl
ic

kr
 V

ie
w

s
8

,0
5

1
2

5
,4

4
7

3
2

,3
5

9
2

7
.1

6
%

Yo
u

Tu
b

e 
V

ie
w

s
5

,2
4

0
3

7
,1

2
9

2
1

,2
3

3
-4

2
.8

1
%

eB
la

st
 E

n
ga

ge
m

en
t

9
2

4
1

,9
9

8
2

,4
3

8
2

2
.0

2
%

To
ta

l L
LD

 A
p

p
 D

o
w

n
lo

ad
s 

*
5

6
4

9
0

5
5

6
4

-3
7

.6
8

%

To
ta

l L
LD

 A
p

p
 S

es
si

o
n

s 
*

1
,0

8
0

1
8

,9
1

9
3

,6
6

0
-8

0
.6

5
%

* 
N

ew
 L

LD
 A

p
p

 w
en

t 
liv

e 
o

n
 7

/2
/2

5
.

27 



Lisle Library District 
Capital Improvement Program 
 

November Board Report (11/13/2025) 

 
Page 1 
 

 
 

General Capital Improvement Program 
 
A. General Summary 

 
1. BAS Update 

 An open item / corrective listing was developed on 11/10 with IBS, LLD and CCS. Further issues 
were identified on 11/13 and distributed that same day. We are working with IBS to have the 
open items addressed so that we can close out the project. 

 IBS is scheduled to be on site on 11/17 to address the noted issues. 
 

2. HVAC (Condensing Unit) Update 

 Paperwork closeout in process. 
 

3. LLD Nature Trail Development Project [Kingston lot]  

 TERRA Engineering to present the final concept phase deliverables for the LLD Nature Trail. 

 Project Summary: 
 

 Project Scope and Design: Attached for reference 
 Project Schedule:  Complete in 2027 

 Design Q1‐Q3 2026 

 Contractor Procurement Q4 2026 

 Construction 2027 
 Project Budget Recommendation: $1.25M aligned to current design 

 Note a GRANT request for $549k is pending 

 Value options include: 
o Gateway Signage ($100k + markups) 
o Pour in Place Surface Play Area ($22.4k + markups) 
o Additional items to be identified in next stages of design (ie. bridge 

and electrical components) 

 
 

 Seeking approval from the LLD Board to request a proposal from TERRA Engineering for the 
remainder of design services and construction administration for the LLD Nature Trail. 

CAPITAL PROJECT COST SUMMARY - BRIDGE INCLUDED

Land Cost (Assumed not required) -$                      

Bond Cost (Assumed not required) -$                      

Building Costs 1,016,500$             

Permit Cost (2%) 19,000$             

Construction Cost - Base Only 950,000$            

Change Order Contingency (5%) 47,500$             

Professional Service Costs 174,240$               

Primary Consultants 125,400$                

Specialized Consultants 24,750$                  

Owner Provided Services 24,090$                  

Sub Total 1,190,740$             

Owner's Project Cost Contingency (5%) 59,537$                 

TOTAL PROJECT COST 1,250,277$          

28 



N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

1
9

, 
2

0
2

5

Li
sl

e
 L

ib
ra

ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

V
a

ca
n

t 
Lo

t 
P

la
n

n
in

g

29 



N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

1
9

, 
2

0
2

5

Li
sl

e
 L

ib
ra

ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

V
a

ca
n

t 
Lo

t 
P

la
n

n
in

g

C
o
n
c
e
p
t
 P

l
a
n

S
it

e
 D

a
ta

 -
C

o
n

ce
p

t 
P

la
n

M
I 

(7
9

0
 L

F
)

0
.1

T
ra

il
 l
e

n
g

th
 

LF
3

0
B

ri
d

g
e

 le
n

g
th

 

E
A

3
B

e
n

ch
e

s

E
A

2
P

ic
n

ic
 t

a
b

le

E
A

1
0

S
to

ry
 b

o
a

rd
 

E
A

4
P

la
y
 f

e
a

tu
re

s

30 



N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

1
9

, 
2

0
2

5

Li
sl

e
 L

ib
ra

ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

V
a

ca
n

t 
Lo

t 
P

la
n

n
in

g

P
r
e
c
e
d
e
n
t
 I
m
a
g
e
r
y

L
ig

h
t
in

g

B
r
id

g
e

N
a
t
iv

e
 L

a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e

P
l
a
y
 A

r
e
a
 E

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

P
l
a
y
 F

e
a
t
u
r
e
s

S
t
o
r
y
 b

o
a
r
d
s

S
it

e
 F

u
r
n
is

h
in

g
s

31 



N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

1
9

, 
2

0
2

5

Li
sl

e
 L

ib
ra

ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

V
a

ca
n

t 
Lo

t 
P

la
n

n
in

g

T
h
a
n
k
 y

o
u

32 



November 11, 2025

Members of the Board of Trustees
Lisle Library District
Lisle, Illinois 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the Lisle Library District (the Library), Illinois for the year ended June 30, 2025. 
Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally 
accepted auditing standards (and, if applicable, Government Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance), as 
well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such 
information to you in our engagement letter. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the 
following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by the Library are described in the Note 1 to the financial statements. No new accounting 
policies were adopted, and the application of existing policies was not changed during the year ended June 30, 
2025, except for the implementation of GASB Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences. We noted no 
transactions entered into by the Library during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or 
consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. 
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and 
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most 
sensitive estimates affecting the governmental activities’ financial statements are noted below. 

Management’s estimates of the: 
• Depreciation expense on capital assets is based on estimated useful lives of the underlying capital assets
• Net pension related accounts are based on estimated assumptions used by the actuary
• Total OPEB related accounts are based on estimated assumptions used by the actuary

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, 
other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Material 
misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures were corrected.

33 



Lisle Library District, Illinois 
November 11, 2025
Page 2

Significant Audit Findings - Continued 

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing 
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the 
auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation 
letter dated November 11, 2025.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, 
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an 
accounting principle to the Library’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that 
may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with 
us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations 
with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Library’s auditors. However, these discussions 
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our 
retention. 

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information (RSI), as listed in the table of 
contents, that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management 
regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during 
our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the RSI.

We were engaged to report on the other supplementary information and supplemental schedules, as listed in the 
table of contents, which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary 
information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing 
the information to determine that the information complies with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the 
information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and 
reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves.

34 



Lisle Library District, Illinois 
November 11, 2025
Page 3

Restrictions on Use

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Trustees and management of the Library and is not 
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We wish to express our gratitude to the Board of Trustees and staff (in particular the Finance Department) of the 
Lisle Library District, Illinois for their valuable cooperation throughout the audit engagement.

LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP

35 



LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT 
LISLE, ILLINOIS

MANAGEMENT LETTER

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2025

777 Front Street
Lisle, IL 60532

Phone: 630.971.1675
Fax: 630.971.1701

www.lislelibrary.org

36 



November 11, 2025

Members of the Board of Trustees
Lisle Library District
Lisle, Illinois

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the Lisle Library District (the Library) of 
Lisle, Illinois, for the year ended June 30, 2025, we considered its internal control structure in order to determine 
our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide 
assurance on the internal control structure.

We do not intend to imply that our audit failed to disclose commendable aspects of your system and structure. For 
your consideration, we herein submit our comments and suggestions which are designed to assist in effecting 
improvements in internal controls and procedures. Those less-significant matters, if any, which arose during the 
course of the audit, were reviewed with management as the audit field work progressed.

The accompanying comments and recommendations are intended solely for the information and use of the 
Finance Committee, Board of Trustees, management, and others within the Lisle Library District.

We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have already discussed many 
of these comments and suggestions with various Library personnel. We would be pleased to discuss our 
comments and suggestions in further detail with you at your convenience, to perform any additional study of these 
matters, or to review the procedures necessary to bring about desirable changes.

We commend the finance department for the well prepared audit package and we appreciate the courtesy and 
assistance given to us by the entire Library staff.

LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP

37 



 CURRENT RECOMMENDATION

1. IT SECURITY AWARENESS AND MONITORING OF EMERGING RISKS

Comment

Recently, we have noted the increasing importance of information technology (IT) security for libraries. 
While we did not identify a specific security breach during our auditing procedures, we have noted 
increased risks to libraries in the following areas of IT security:

• Ransomware and Phishing Attacks – Increasingly targeted at libraries due to limited IT staffing and 
valuable public data.

• Multi-Factor Authentication (MFA) – This is now considered a minimum standard of protection for 
access to email, financial systems and remote logins.

• Vendor and Third-Party Risk – Cloud service providers, software vendors, and contractors may 
present risks if not adequately monitored.

• Data Backup and Recovery – Secure, tested backups are critical to minimize downtime and financial 
loss in the event of an incident.

• Staff Awareness and Training – Many breaches in libraries occur due to human error; regular training 
and simulated testing can help reduce exposure.

Recommendation

We recommend that the Library continue to increase awareness around IT security issues by:

• Engaging in ongoing monitoring or cyber security trends affecting libraries.
• Incorporating regular staff training on phishing and other social engineering tactics.
• Periodically reviewing policies for password strength, MFA, and incident response.
• Ensuring vendor contracts address security standards and data protection.
• Testing data backup and recovery plans on at least an annual basis.

By increasing awareness and preparedness, the Library can reduce the likelihood of a security incident, 
protect sensitive constituent and financial data, and help to ensure continuity of operations.

38 



UPCOMING STANDARDS

1. GASB STATEMENT NO. 103 FINANCIAL REPORTING MODEL IMPROVEMENTS

In April 2024, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 103, 
Financial Reporting Model Improvements, which establishes improvements to key components of the 
financial reporting model to enhance effectiveness in providing information that is essential for decision 
making and assessing a government’s accountability. The Statement addresses application issues related 
to management’ discussion and analysis, unusual or infrequent items, presentation of the proprietary fund 
statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net position, major component unit information, 
and budgetary comparison information. GASB Statement No. 103, Financial Reporting Model 
Improvements is applicable to the Library’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2026. 

2. GASB STATEMENT NO. 104 DISCLOSURE OF CERTAIN CAPITAL ASSETS

In September 2024, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 104, 
Disclosure of Certain Capital Assets, which provide users of government financial statements with 
essential information about certain types of capital assets. This statement establishes requirements for (1) 
Certain types of capital assets to be disclosed separately in the capital assets note disclosures, and (2) 
Capital assets held for sale, including additional disclosures for those capital assets. GASB Statement No. 
104, Disclosure of Certain Capital Assets is applicable to the District’s financial statements for the year 
ended June 30, 2026.

39 



LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT 
LISLE, ILLINOIS

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2025

777 Front Street
Lisle, IL 60532

Phone: 630.971.1675
Fax: 630.971.1701

www.lislelibrary.org

40 



PAGE

FINANCIAL SECTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 1

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 4

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Government-Wide Financial Statements
Statement of Net Position 13
Statement of Activities 15

Fund Financial Statements
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 16
Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balance to the

Statement of Net Position - Governmental Activities 17
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 18
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities - Governmental Activities 19
Notes to Financial Statements 20

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of Employer Contributions
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund - Last Ten Fiscal Years 44

Schedule of Changes in the Employer’s Net Pension Liability/(Asset)
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund - Last Ten Measurement Years 45

Schedule of Changes in the Employer’s Total OPEB Liability
Retiree Benefit Plan 47

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
General Fund 48

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

41 



PAGE

FINANCIAL SECTION - Continued

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Special Reserve - Capital Projects Fund 51

Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 52
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 53
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Illinois Municipal Retirement - Special Revenue Fund 54
Social Security - Special Revenue Fund 55

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES

General Governmental Revenues by Source - Last Ten Fiscal Years 58
General Governmental Expenditures by Function - Last Ten Fiscal Years 60
Schedule of Assessed Valuations, Tax Rates, Tax Extensions

and Tax Collections - Last Ten Tax Levy Years 62

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

42 



FINANCIAL SECTION

This section includes:

Independent Auditor's Report

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Basic Financial Statements

Required Supplementary Information

Other Supplementary Information

Supplemental Schedules

43 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

This section includes the opinion of the Library’s independent auditing firm.

44 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

November 11, 2025

Members of the Board of Trustees
Lisle Library District
Lisle, Illinois

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the Lisle Library District (the District), Illinois, as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2025, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Library’s 
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information 
of the Lisle Library District, Illinois, as of June 30, 2025, and the respective changes in financial position for the 
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Library, and to meet our 
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements   

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the financial statements, management 
is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial 
doubt about the Library’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement 
date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.   

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the 
financial statements.

1 45 



Lisle Library District, Illinois
November 11, 2025

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements - Continued

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Library’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about the Library’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of 
time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we 
identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis, the budgetary comparison schedules, and supplementary pension and other post-
employment benefit (OPEB) schedules, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Lisle Library District, Illinois’ basic financial statements. The other supplementary information and 
supplemental schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic 
financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements 
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the other supplementary information and supplemental schedules 
are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
   

LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP

2 46 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

3 47 



Our discussion and analysis of the Lisle Library District’s (the Library) financial performance provides an 
overview of the Library’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025. Please read it in conjunction 
with the Library’s basic financial statements, which can be found in the basic financial statements section of this 
report.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

• During the year, government-wide revenues totaled $4,865,266, while government-wide expenses totaled 
$5,219,663, resulting in a decrease to net position of $354,397.

• The net position decreased by $354,397 for the year ended June 30, 2025 compared to a net position of 
$12,201,779 on June 30, 2024. 

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Activities provide information about the activities of the Library as a whole and present a longer-term view of the 
Library’s finances. 

For governmental activities, these statements tell how these services were financed in the short term as well as 
what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also report the Library’s operation in more detail than 
the government-wide statements by providing information about the Library’s most significant funds. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements provide readers with a broad overview of the Library’s finances, in a 
matter similar to a private-sector business. 

The Statement of Net Position reports information on all of the Library’s assets/deferred outflows and liabilities/
deferred inflows, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases 
in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Library is improving or 
deteriorating. Consideration of other nonfinancial factors, such as changes in the Library’s property tax base, is 
needed to assess the overall health of the Library.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed during the 
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the 
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  

Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in 
future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes).

Both of the government-wide financial statements report functions of the Library that are principally supported by 
taxes and charges for services revenues (governmental activities). The governmental activities of the Library 
include the public library function.

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2025

4 48 



USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT - Continued

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated 
for specific activities or objectives. The Library, like other local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and 
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. The Library only maintains governmental funds.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in 
the government-wide financial statements. However, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term 
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of 
the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the Library’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is 
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand 
the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance 
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a 
reconciliation to facilitate the comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Library maintains four individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the 
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes 
in fund balances for the General Fund and Special Reserve Fund, both of which are considered major funds. Data 
from the other two governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data 
for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this 
report.

The Library adopts an annual appropriated budget for all of the governmental funds. A budgetary comparison 
schedule for these funds has been provided to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the 
government-wide and fund financial statements. 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. The following tables 
show that in the case of the Library, assets/deferred outflows exceeded liabilities/deferred liabilities by 
$11,847,382.

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2025

5 49 



GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS - Continued

Net Position
2025 2024

Current and Other Assets $  8,847,525  8,321,720 
Capital Assets  8,857,001  9,069,929 

Total Assets  17,704,526  17,391,649 
Deferred Outflows  502,629  909,590 

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows  18,207,155  18,301,239 

Long-Term Debt Outstanding  1,287,900  1,382,918 
Other Liabilities  399,900  202,527 

Total Liabilities  1,687,800  1,585,445 
Deferred Inflows  4,671,973  4,514,015 

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows  6,359,773  6,099,460 

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets  7,794,263  8,149,929 
Restricted  418,506  306,423 
Unrestricted  3,634,613  3,745,427 

Total Net Position  11,847,382  12,201,779 

A large portion of the Library’s net position, $7,794,263 or 65.8%, reflects its investment in capital assets (for 
example, land, construction in progress, buildings and improvements, library materials, and equipment and 
furnishings), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The Library uses these 
capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. 

An additional portion, $418,506 or 3.5%, of the Library’s net position represents resources that are subject to 
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining $3,634,613 or 30.7%, represents unrestricted net 
position and may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2025

6 50 



GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS - Continued

Changes in  Net Position
2025 2024

Revenues
Program Revenues

Charges for Services $  17,944  12,643 
Operating Grants/Contributions  44,967  44,664 

General Revenues
Property Taxes  4,509,041  4,294,894 
Personal Property Replacement  26,485  39,943 
Interest Income  120,522  109,116 
Miscellaneous  146,307  37,243 

Total Revenues  4,865,266  4,538,503 

Expenses
Public Library  5,195,063  4,686,346 
Interest and Fiscal Charges  24,600  25,400 

Total Expenses  5,219,663  4,711,746 

Change in Net Position  (354,397)  (173,243) 

Net Position - Beginning  12,201,779  12,375,022 

Net Position - Ending  11,847,382  12,201,779 

Net position of the Library’s governmental activities decreased from $12,201,779 to $11,847,382.

Revenues of $4,865,266 fell short of expenses of $5,219,663, resulting in a decrease to net position in the current 
year of $354,397.

Governmental Activities 

In the current year, governmental net position decreased $354,397 or 2.9 percent. Expenses increased by $507,917 
in the current year ($5,219,663 in 2025 compared to $4,711,746 in 2024) primarily due to an increase in employee 
costs.

This increase in expenses was offset by the overall increase in revenues of $326,763, mainly due to an increase in 
program revenues, interest income, and property tax extensions. 

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2025

7 51 



GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS - Continued

Governmental Activities - Continued

The following table graphically depicts the major revenue sources of the Library. It depicts very clearly the 
reliance of property taxes to fund governmental activities. 

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities

Charges for Services; 0.4%

Property Taxes; 92.7%

Operating Grants; 0.9%

Replacement Taxes; 0.5%
Interest; 2.5%

Miscellaneous; 3.0%

The Library primarily relies on general revenues such as property taxes and interest income. The Library regularly 
seeks grant opportunities and has relied on fundraising efforts to supplement revenues for special projects.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the Library uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the Library’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and 
balances of spendable resources. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a 
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of 
$3,732,212 which is 4.5 percent higher than last year’s ending fund balance of $3,569,990.

The General Fund reported an increase of $381,254, including a transfer to the Special Reserve Fund of $120,000. 
The fund reported an increase due to increased property taxes and TIF revenues. In the current year, total 
governmental fund balances increased by $162,222.

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2025

8 52 



FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT’S FUNDS - Continued

Governmental Funds - Continued

The Special Reserve Fund reported a decrease of $190,347, including a transfer in of $120,000 from the General 
Fund. The fund reported a decrease due to capital project expenditures increasing for the HVAC/BAS capital 
project that was completed during the fiscal year.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

During the year, supplemental amendments were made to the budget for the General Fund. 

The General Fund actual revenues were higher than budgeted revenues. Actual revenues for the current year were 
$4,618,602, compared to budgeted revenues of $4,481,320. This resulted mainly from TIF revenues coming in 
$104,588 higher than budgeted and interest revenue coming in $45,612 higher than budgeted. 

The General Fund actual expenditures were lower than budgeted expenditures. Actual expenditures totaled 
$4,117,348 while budgeted expenditures totaled $4,286,475. This resulted primarily from capital outlay and 
employee cost expenditures coming in below budget by $55,042 and $39,670, respectively. 

CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
The Library’s net investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of June 30, 2025 was $8,857,001 
(net of accumulated depreciation). This net investment in capital assets includes land, construction in progress, 
library materials, buildings and improvements, and equipment and furnishings. 

Capital Assets - Net of Depreciation
2025 2024

Land $  535,528  535,528 
Construction in Progress  173,729  — 
Library Materials  606,421  663,025 
Buildings and Improvements  7,069,264  7,335,993 
Equipment and Furnishings  472,059  535,383 

Total  8,857,001  9,069,929 
 

This year’s additions to capital assets included:

Construction in Progress $ 173,729
Library Materials 321,437
Equipment and Furnishings 6,904

502,070
 

Additional information on the Library’s capital assets can be found in Note 3 of this report.

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2025

9 53 



DEBT ADMINISTRATION

At year-end, the Library had total outstanding debt of $880,000 as compared to $920,000 the previous year, a 
decrease of 4.3 percent. The following is a comparative statement of outstanding debt:

Long-Term
 Debt Outstanding
2025 2024

Debt Certificates $ 880,000 920,000

The District maintains an Aa1 rating from Moody’s for general obligation debt. This rating has not changed. State 
statutes limit the amount of general obligation governmental entity may issue to 2.875 percent of its total assessed 
valuation. The current debt limit for the District is $44,713,456.

Additional information on the Library’s long-term debt can be found in Note 3 of this report. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET
 
The Library’s elected officials and staff considered many factors when setting the FY 2025/26 budget. Those 
factors include tax rates, patron services, resources, and capital improvement projects. The Library is faced with 
similar economic challenges as other local municipalities, including inflation and the retention of qualified staff. 
The Library is committed to providing high quality library services to its constituents, while remaining a fiscally 
responsible unit of government.

The Library’s elected officials are planning a capital improvement project for a lot of vacant land that the Library 
owns. Plans for the lot are currently being discussed in Board meetings. The Library is working with an owner’s 
representative and design team to plan, budget, and manage this project. The Library shall rely on its investment 
and public finance firms to properly plan, document, and track upcoming project costs. The goal of this project is 
to optimize the use of vacant land to create an improved programming space and allow for more efficient parking 
during large-scale programs. The Library has applied for an OSLAD grant to supplement funding this project. 

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Library’s finances. Questions concerning 
any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be directed to Director, 
Tatiana Weinstein at the Lisle Library District, 777 Front Street, Lisle, IL 60532 | tatiana@lislelibrary.org | 
630-971-1675.

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2025

10 54 

tatiana@lislelibrary.org


BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial Statements include integrated sets of financial statements as required by the GASB. The sets 
of statements include:

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental Funds

In addition, the notes to the financial statements are included to provide information that is essential to a user’s 
understanding of the basic financial statements.

11 55 



See Following Page

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2025

12 56 



Governmental 
Activities

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and Investments $ 6,341,143
Receivables - Net of Allowances

Property Taxes 2,217,845
Prepaids 147,769

Total Current Assets 8,706,757

Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets

Nondepreciable 709,257
Depreciable 13,609,557
Accumulated Depreciation (5,461,813)

Total Noncurrent Assets 8,857,001

Other Assets
Net Pension Asset - IMRF 140,768

Total Noncurrent Assets 8,997,769
Total Assets 17,704,526

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Items - IMRF 502,629
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 18,207,155

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2025

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
13 57 



Governmental
Activities

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 248,123
Accrued Payroll 54,449
Accrued Interest 12,100
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt 85,228

Total Current Liabilities 399,900

Noncurrent Liabilities
Compensated Absences Payable 49,782
Total OPEB Liability - RBP 398,118
Debt Certificates Payable 840,000

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 1,287,900
Total Liabilities 1,687,800

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Property Taxes 4,671,973
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 6,359,773

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets 7,794,263
Restricted  

IMRF 240,469
Social Security 178,037

Unrestricted 3,634,613

Total Net Position 11,847,382
 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
14 58 



Net
Program Revenues (Expenses)/

Charges Operating Capital Revenues and
for Grants/ Grants/ Changes in

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Net Position

Governmental Activities
Public Library $ 5,195,063 17,944 44,967 — (5,132,152)
Interest and Fiscal Charges 24,600 — — — (24,600)

Total Governmental Activities 5,219,663 17,944 44,967 — (5,156,752)

General Revenues
    Taxes

Property Taxes 4,509,041
Intergovernmental - Unrestricted

Replacement Taxes 26,485
Interest Income 120,522
Miscellaneous 146,307

4,802,355

Change in Net Position (354,397)

Net Position - Beginning 12,201,779

Net Position - Ending 11,847,382

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2025

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
15 59 



Capital
Projects
Special

General Reserve Nonmajor Totals

ASSETS 

Cash and Investments $ 5,376,151 545,277 419,715 6,341,143
Receivables - Net of Allowances

Property Taxes 2,095,288 — 122,557 2,217,845
Prepaids 147,769 — — 147,769

Total Assets 7,619,208 545,277 542,272 8,706,757

LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable 59,023 182,738 6,362 248,123
Accrued Payroll 54,449 — — 54,449

Total Liabilities 113,472 182,738 6,362 302,572

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Property Taxes 4,413,801 — 258,172 4,671,973
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 4,527,273 182,738 264,534 4,974,545

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable 147,769 — — 147,769
Restricted — — 277,738 277,738
Committed — 362,539 — 362,539
Unassigned 2,944,166 — — 2,944,166

Total Fund Balances 3,091,935 362,539 277,738 3,732,212

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and 
Fund Balances 7,619,208 545,277 542,272 8,706,757

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2025

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
16 60 



Total Fund Balances $ 3,732,212

Amounts reported in the Statement of Net Position
are different because:

Capital assets are not financial resources and therefore,
 are not reported in the funds. 8,857,001

A net pension asset is not considered to represent a financial resource and 
therefore is not reported in the funds.

Net Pension Asset - IMRF 140,768

Deferred outflows (inflows) of resources related to the pensions not reported in the funds.
Deferred Items - IMRF 502,629

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Compensated Absences Payable (62,227)
Total OPEB Liability (430,901)
Debt Certificates Payable (880,000)
Accrued Interest Payable (12,100)

Net Position of Governmental Activities 11,847,382

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Reconciliation of Total Fund Balance to the Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2025

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
17 61 



Capital
Projects
Special

General Reserve Nonmajor Totals

Revenues
Property Taxes $ 4,282,945 — 226,096 4,509,041
TIF Revenues 139,588 — — 139,588
Replacement Taxes 24,827 — 1,658 26,485
Charges for Services 17,944 — — 17,944
Grants and Donations 44,967 — — 44,967
Interest Income 101,612 10,875 8,035 120,522
Miscellaneous 6,719 — — 6,719

Total Revenues 4,618,602 10,875 235,789 4,865,266

Expenditures
Public Library 3,371,140 — 264,474 3,635,614
Capital Outlay 681,208 321,222 — 1,002,430
Debt Service

Principal Retirement 40,000 — — 40,000
Interest and Fiscal Charges 25,000 — — 25,000

Total Expenditures 4,117,348 321,222 264,474 4,703,044

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures 501,254 (310,347) (28,685) 162,222

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In — 120,000 — 120,000
Transfers Out (120,000) — — (120,000)

(120,000) 120,000 — —

Net Change in Fund Balances 381,254 (190,347) (28,685) 162,222

Fund Balances - Beginning 2,710,681 552,886 306,423 3,569,990

Fund Balances - Ending 3,091,935 362,539 277,738 3,732,212
   

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2025

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
18 62 



Net Change in Fund Balances $ 162,222

Amounts reported in the Statement of Activities
are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. 

Capital Outlays 502,070
Depreciation Expense (714,998)
Disposals - Cost (386,662)
Disposals - Accumulated Depreciation 386,662

An addition to a net pension asset is not considered to be an increase in a
financial asset in the governmental funds.

Change in Net Pension Asset - IMRF 44,318

The net effect of deferred outflows (inflows) of resources related
to the pensions not reported in the funds. 

Change in Deferred Items - IMRF (406,961)

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal on long-term
debt consumes the current financial resources of the governmental funds.

Change in Compensated Absences (18,415)
Change in Total OPEB Liability - RBP 36,967
Debt Issuance 40,000

Changes to accrued interest on long-term debt in the Statement of Activities
does not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. 400

 
Changes in Net Position (354,397)

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances to the 
Statement of Activities 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2025

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
19 63 



NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Lisle Library District (the Library), Lisle, Illinois provides services primarily to citizens of the District of 
Lisle, Illinois, including lending or renting materials to adults and children to meet their informational, 
recreations, and educational needs. The government-wide financial statements are prepared in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP in the United States for state and local governments through 
its pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations). The more significant of the Library’s accounting policies 
established in GAAP in the United States and used by the Library are described below.

REPORTING ENTITY

The Library is governed by a publicly elected seven-member board of trustees. The accompanying financial 
statements present the government and its component units, entities for which the government is considered to be 
financially accountable. Blended component units are, in substance, part of the primary government’s operations, 
even though they are legally separate entities. Thus, blended component units are appropriately presented as funds 
of the primary government. Each discretely presented component unit is reported in a separate column in the 
government-wide financial statements to emphasize that it is both legally and substantively separate from the 
government. Management has determined that there are no fiduciary component units that are required to be 
included in the financial statements of the Village as pension trust funds and there are no discretely component 
units to include in the reporting entity.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of the Library’s functions. The 
Library’s activities are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues. The Statement of Activities reduces 
gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues, which include 1) charges to customers or 
applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or 
segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
particular function or segment.

The financial transactions of the Library are reported in individual funds in the fund financial statements. Each 
fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, 
reserves, fund equity, revenues and expenditures. The Library accounts for all of its activities in governmental 
funds, with the emphasis in the fund financial statements being on the major funds.

Nonmajor funds by category are summarized into a single column. GASB Statement No. 34 sets forth minimum 
criteria (percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures of either fund category) for the 
determination of major funds. The following fund types are used by the Library:

Governmental Funds

The focus of the governmental funds’ measurement (in the fund statements) is upon determination of financial 
position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and balances of financial resources) rather than upon net 
income. The following is a description of the governmental funds of the Library:

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

20 64 



NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

BASIS OF PRESENTATION - Continued 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements - Continued 

Governmental Funds - Continued

General Fund is the general operating fund of the Library. It is used to account for all financial resources, except 
for those required to be accounted for in another fund. The Library reports the General Fund as a major fund.

Special revenues funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted 
to expenditures for specified purposes. The Library maintains two special revenue funds and are reported as 
nonmajor.

Capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of 
major capital facilities. The Library reports the Special Reserve Fund as a major fund.

MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

Measurement focus is a term used to describe “which” transactions are recorded within the various financial 
statements. Basis of accounting refers to “when” transactions are recorded regardless of the measurement focus 
applied.

Measurement Focus

On the government-wide Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the governmental activities 
are presented using the economic resources measurement focus as defined below.

All governmental funds utilize a “current financial resources” measurement focus. Only current financial assets/
deferred outflows and liabilities/deferred inflows are generally included on their balance sheets. Their operating 
statements present sources and uses of available spendable financial resources during a given period. These funds 
use fund balance as their measure of available spendable financial resources at the end of the period.

The accounting objectives of the “economic resources” measurement focus is the determination of operating 
income, changes in net position (or cost recovery), financial position, and cash flows. All assets/deferred 
outflows, liabilities/deferred inflows (whether current or noncurrent) associated with their activities are reported. 

Basis of Accounting

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities, activities are presented using the 
accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and 
expenses are recorded when the liability/deferred inflows is incurred or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, 
gains, losses, assets/deferred outflows, and liabilities/deferred inflows resulting from exchange and exchange-like 
transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place.

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

21 65 



NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING - Continued 

Basis of Accounting - Continued 

In the fund financial statements, funds are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this 
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when “measurable and available.” Measurable 
means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the amount. Available means collectible within the current 
period or within sixty days after year-end. The Library recognizes property taxes when they become both 
measurable and available in accordance with GASB Codification Section P70. A sixty day availability period is 
used for revenue recognition for all other fund revenues. Expenditures (including capital outlay) are recorded 
when the related fund liability/deferred inflow is incurred, except for general obligation bond principal and 
interest which are recognized when due.

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept under the modified accrual basis, those revenues susceptible to 
accrual are property taxes, interest revenue, and charges for services. All other revenues are not susceptible to 
accrual because generally they are not measurable until received in cash.

ASSETS/DEFERRED OUTFLOWS, LIABILITIES/DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND FUND BALANCE/
NET POSITION

Cash and Investments

For the purpose of the Statement of Net Position, the Library’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be 
cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from 
the date of purchase.

Investments are generally reported at fair value. Short-term investments are reported at cost, which approximates 
fair value. For investments, the Library categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy 
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to 
measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 
inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

Receivables

In the government-wide financial statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet 
received. Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical trends and the periodic aging 
of accounts receivable. Major receivables balances include property taxes.

Prepaids 

Prepaids are valued at cost, which approximates market. Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to 
future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaids in both the government-wide and fund financial 
statements.

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

22 66 



NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

ASSETS/DEFERRED OUTFLOWS, LIABILITIES/DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND FUND BALANCE/
NET POSITION - Continued

Capital Assets

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $5,000 or more are reported at historical cost or 
estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at acquisition value as of the date received. Additions, 
improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other 
costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. The accounting and financial reporting 
treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. General capital assets are long-lived assets of 
the Library as a whole. When purchased, such assets are recorded as expenditures in the governmental fund and 
capitalized in the Statement of Net Position. The valuation basis for general capital assets are historical cost, or 
where historical cost is not available, estimated historical cost based on replacement costs.

Depreciation on all assets is computed and recorded using the straight-line method of depreciation over the 
following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and Improvements  15 - 40 Years
Library Materials    20 Years
Equipment and Furnishings 5 - 10 Years

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

Deferred outflow/inflow of resources represents a consumption/acquisition of net assets that applies to a future 
period and therefore will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense)/inflow of resources (revenue) 
until that future time.

Compensated Absences

The Library’s policy allows employees of the Library can carry over up to 75 hours of vacation time into the next 
fiscal year. Employees earn between 75 to 187.5 hours of annual vacation depending on their length of service 
with the Library, and vacation leave can be accrued to a maximum of 262.5 hours. 

Full time employees earn 7.5 hours of sick leave each month, which can accumulate up to 240 days. Upon 
retirement,  unused sick leave is paid into the IMRF plan. 

This liability is accounted for as a governmental activity on the government-wide Statement of Net Position. A 
liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a 
result of employee resignations and retirements.

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

23 67 



NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 
 
ASSETS/DEFERRED OUTFLOWS, LIABILITIES/DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND FUND BALANCE/
NET POSITION - Continued 
 
Net Position
 
In the government-wide financial statements, equity is classified as net position and displayed in three 
components:
 

Net Investment in Capital Assets - Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or 
other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

 
Restricted - Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by (1) external groups such 
as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (2) law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

 
Unrestricted - All other net position that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or “net investment in 
capital assets.”

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and 
assumption that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses 
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

 
NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY
 
BUDGETARY INFORMATION
 
Budgets and appropriations for all funds are prepared on the same basis and use the same accounting practices as 
are used in the fund financial statements. For each fund, total fund expenditures disbursed may not legally exceed 
the appropriated amounts. The budget lapses at the end of each fiscal year. The Library follows these procedures 
in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:
 

• The Appropriation Ordinance is prepared in tentative form by the Treasurer and is made available for 
public inspection at least 30 days prior to final Board action. By the fourth Tuesday in September, a 
public hearing is held on the tentative Appropriation Ordinance to obtain taxpayer comments and pass the 
Ordinance in final form.

 
• The Board of Trustees may:

◦ Adopt a supplemental Appropriation Ordinance for revenues which become available, or are 
estimated to become available, subsequent to the adoption of the annual Appropriation Ordinance.

◦ After six months of the fiscal year, by two-thirds vote, transfer any appropriation item it anticipates 
being unexpended to any other appropriation item.

 

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

24 68 



NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY - Continued
 
BUDGETARY INFORMATION - Continued

• The Library Board may accumulate and set apart, as reserve funds, for the purchase, construction, rental 
and/or repair of Library buildings and equipment, the unexpended balances of the proceeds annually 
received from taxes, not to exceed the statutory limits, provided the Library Board in its annual 
Appropriation specifies that a specific fund is to be or is being accumulated for this purpose.

• The Library does not use the encumbrance method of accounting. Budgetary funds are controlled by an 
integrated budgetary accounting system, in accordance with various legal requirements which govern the 
Library.

NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 
 
DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 
The Library maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds. Each fund type's portion 
of this pool is displayed on the financial statements as "cash and investments." 
 
Permitted Deposits and Investments - Statutes authorize the Library to make deposits/invest in commercial banks, 
savings and loan institutions, obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agencies, obligations of States and their 
political subdivisions, credit union shares, repurchase agreements, commercial paper rated within the three highest 
classifications by at least two standard rating services, the Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund, and the Illinois 
Funds.
 
The Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund (IMET) is a non-for-profit investment trust formed pursuant to the 
Illinois Municipal Code. IMET is managed by a Board of Trustees elected from the participating members. IMET 
is not registered with the SEC as an Investment Company. Investments in IMET are valued at the share price, the 
price for which the investment could be sold.
 
Illinois Funds is an investment pool managed by the Illinois public Treasurer’s Office which allows governments 
within the State to pool their funds for investment purposes. The Illinois Funds is not registered with the SEC as 
an investment company. Investments in Illinois Funds are valued at the share price, the price for which the 
investment could be sold.

Deposits. At year-end, the carrying amount of the Library’s deposits totaled $5,290,887 and the bank balances 
totaled $5,433,279. 
 

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

25 69 



NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

Investments. At year-end, the Library had the following investments: 

Investment Maturities (in 
Years)

Fair Less Than
Investment Type Value 1 1-5

U.S. Treasury Securities $ 565,682 565,682 —
Municipal Bonds 366,114 125,175 240,939
Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund 3,375 3,375 —
Illinois Funds 115,085 115,085 —

1,050,256 809,317 240,939

The Library has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2025: 

• U.S. Treasury Securities of $565,682 are valued using quoted market prices (Level 1 inputs)
• Municipal Bonds of $366,114 are valued using significant observable inputs (Level 2 inputs)
• Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund of $3,375 are valued using quoted market prices (Level 1 inputs)
• Illinois Funds of $115,085 are valued using quoted market prices (Level 1 inputs)

Interest Rate Risk. Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of 
an investment. The Library’s investment policy states that the investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid 
to enable the Library to meet all operating requirements which may be reasonably anticipated in any Library fund. 
Investment maturities in all funds shall be limited to a maximum maturity of twenty-four (24) months from the 
date of purchase. Investments in other funds may be purchased with maturities to match future project or liability 
requirements. However, any investment purchased with a maturity longer than two (2) years must be supported by 
written documentation explaining the reason for the purchase and must be specifically pre-authorized by the 
Finance Committee. 

Credit Risk. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligations. Besides investing in security instruments authorized under State Statute, the Library’s investment 
policy further states that safety of principal is the foremost objective of the Library. At year-end, the Library’s 
investments in the Illinois Funds was rated AAAmmf by Fitch, the Illinois Metropolitan Investment Trust 
Convenience Fund is not rated, and the Municipal Bonds are rated Aaa by Moody's.

Custodial Credit Risk. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Library’s 
deposits may not be returned to it. The Library’s investment policy states that time deposits in excess of FDIC or 
SAIF insurable limits be secured by some form of collateral, with a third party safekeeping agreement for all 
collateral. At year-end, $8,908 was not covered by collateral, federal depository or equivalent insurance.

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

26 70 



NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

Custodial Credit Risk - Continued.

For an investment, this is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Library will not be able to 
recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The 
Library’s investment policy does not mitigate custodial credit risk for investments. At year-end, the Library’s 
investments in U.S. Government Agencies are all insured or registered with the Library or its agent in the 
Library’s name and the Library’s investment in the Illinois Fund is subject to custodial credit risk. 

Concentration Risk. This is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the Library’s investment in a single 
issuer. The Library’s investment policy states that the Library shall diversify its investments to avoid incurring 
unreasonable risks regarding specific security types and/or individual institutions. Furthermore, no financial 
institution shall hold more than twenty percent (20%) of the Library’s investment portfolio, exclusive of U.S. 
Treasury securities and collateralized investments held in safekeeping. Commercial paper shall not exceed ten 
percent (10%) of the Library’s investment portfolio and the Illinois Public Treasurer’s Investment Pool shall not 
exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the investment portfolio. At year-end, the Library does not have any 
investments over 5 percent of the total cash and investment portfolio (other than investments issued or explicitly 
guaranteed by the U.S. government and investments in mutual funds, external investment pools, and other pooled 
investments).

PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes for 2024 attach as an enforceable lien on January 1, on property values assessed as of the same 
date. Taxes are levied by December of the subsequent fiscal year (by passage of a Tax Levy Ordinance). Tax bills 
are prepared by DuPage County and are payable in two installments, on or about June 1 and September 1. The 
County collects such taxes and remits them periodically. The allowance for uncollectible taxes has been stated at 
1% of the tax levy, to reflect actual collection experience.

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Transfers are used to use unrestricted revenues collected in the General Fund to finance various programs 
accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations. 

Transfer In Transfer Out Amount

Special Reserve General $  120,000 

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

27 71 



NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year was as follows:

Beginning Ending 
Balances Increases Decreases Balances

Nondepreciable Capital Assets
Land $ 535,528 — — 535,528
Construction in Progress — 173,729 — 173,729

535,528 173,729 — 709,257

Depreciable Capital Assets
Buildings and Improvements 11,028,017 — — 11,028,017
Library Materials 1,762,099 321,437 386,662 1,696,874
Equipment and Furnishings 877,762 6,904 — 884,666

13,667,878 328,341 386,662 13,609,557

Less Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings and Improvements 3,692,024 266,729 — 3,958,753
Library Materials 1,099,074 378,041 386,662 1,090,453
Equipment and Furnishings 342,379 70,228 — 412,607

5,133,477 714,998 386,662 5,461,813

Total Net Depreciable Capital Assets 8,534,401 (386,657) — 8,147,744

Total Net Capital Assets 9,069,929 (212,928) — 8,857,001

Depreciation expense of $714,998 was charged to the public library function.

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

28 72 



NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued

LONG-TERM DEBT 

Debt Certificates

The Library issues debt certificates to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities. 
Debt certificates currently outstanding are as follows:

Beginning Ending
Issue Balances Issuances Retirements Balances

General Obligation Limited Tax Debt 
Certificate of 2021 - Due in annual 
installments of $35,000 to $65,000 plus 
interest at 2.00% to 3.00%  through January 1, 
2042. $  920,000  —  40,000  880,000 

Long-Term Liability Activity

Changes in long-term liabilities during the fiscal year were as follows:

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due within

Type of Debt Balances Additions Deductions Balances One Year

Compensated Absences $ 43,812 18,415 — 62,227 12,445
Total OPEB Liability 467,868 — 36,967 430,901 32,783
Debt Certificates 920,000 — 40,000 880,000 40,000

1,431,680 18,415 76,967 1,373,128 85,228

The total OPEB liability and the debt certificates are generally liquidated by the General Fund. 

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

29 73 



NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued

LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

Debt Service Requirements to Maturity

The annual debt service requirements to maturity, including principal and interest, are as follows:

Debt
Fiscal Certificates
Year Principal Interest

2026 $  40,000  24,200 
2027  45,000  23,400 
2028  45,000  22,500 
2029  45,000  21,600 
2030  45,000  20,700 
2031  45,000  19,800 
2032  50,000  18,450 
2033  50,000  16,950 
2034  50,000  15,450 
2035  50,000  13,950 
2036  55,000  12,450 
2037  55,000  10,800 
2038  55,000  9,150 
2039  60,000  7,500 
2040  60,000  5,700 
2041  65,000  3,900 
2042  65,000  975 

 880,000  247,475 

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

30 74 



NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued

LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

Legal Debt Margin

Chapter 65, Section 5/8-5-1 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes provides, “…no municipality having a population of 
less than 500,000 shall become indebted in any manner or for any purpose, to an amount, including existing 
indebtedness in the aggregate exceeding 2.875% on the value of the taxable property therein, to be ascertained by 
the last assessment for state and county purposes, previous to the incurring of the indebtedness or, until January 1, 
1983, if greater, the sum that is produced by multiplying the municipality’s 1978 equalized assessed valuation by 
the debt limitation percentage in effect on January 1, 1979.”

Assessed Valuation - 2024 $ 1,555,250,630

Legal Debt Limit - 2.875% of Assessed Value 44,713,456
Amount of Debt Applicable to Limit

Debt Certificates 880,000

Legal Debt Margin 43,833,456

NET POSITION CLASSIFICATION

Net investment in capital assets was comprised of the following as of June 30, 2025:

Governmental Activities
Capital Assets - Net of Accumulated Depreciation $  8,857,001 

Less Capital Related Debt:
Capital Project Related Accounts Payable  (182,738) 
General Obligation Limited Tax Debt Certificate of 2021  (880,000) 

Net Investment in Capital Assets  7,794,263 
 

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

31 75 



NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued

FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS

In the governmental funds financial statements, the Library considers restricted amounts to have been spent when 
an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available. The 
Library first utilizes committed, then assigned and then unassigned fund balance when an expenditure is incurred 
for purposes for which all three unrestricted fund balances are available.

Nonspendable Fund Balance. Consists of resources that cannot be spent because they are either: a) not in a 
spendable form; or b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted Fund Balance. Consists of resources that are restricted to specific purposes, that is, when constraints 
placed on the use of resources are either: a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), 
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or b) imposed by law through constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed Fund Balance. Consists of resources constrained (issuance of an ordinance) to specific purposes by the 
government itself, using its highest level of decision-making authority, the Library’s Board; to be reported as 
committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the government takes the same highest-level 
action to remove or change the constraint.

Assigned Fund Balance. Consists of amounts that are constrained by the Library’s Boards’ intent to be used for 
specific purposes but are neither restricted nor committed. Intent is expressed by a) the Library’s Board itself or b) 
a body or official to which the Library’s Board has delegated the authority to assign amounts to be used for 
specific purposes. The Library’s highest level of decision-making authority is the Library’s Board, who is 
authorized to assign amounts to a specific purpose.

Unassigned Fund Balance. Consists of residual net resources of a fund that has not been restricted, committed, or 
assigned within the General Fund and deficit fund balances of other governmental funds.

Minimum Fund Balance Policy. The Library’s policy manual states that the General Fund should maintain a 
minimum fund balance equal to six months of budgeted operating expenditures. All other funds should maintain a 
minimum of three months of budgeted expenditures. 

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

32 76 



NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued
 
FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS - Continued
 
The following is a schedule of fund balance classifications for the governmental funds as of the date of this report:

 
Capital
Projects
Special

General Reserve Nonmajor Totals
Fund Balances

Nonspendable
Prepaids $ 147,769 — — 147,769

Restricted
IMRF — — 99,701 99,701
Social Security — — 178,037 178,037

— — 277,738 277,738

Committed
Capital Projects — 362,539 — 362,539

Unassigned 2,944,166 — — 2,944,166
 

Total Fund Balances 3,091,935 362,539 277,738 3,732,212
  

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The Library is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors 
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Library carries commercial insurance for all risks 
of loss including worker’s compensation and employee health insurance. Settled claims resulting from these risks 
have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in the past three fiscal years. 
 
Litigation
 
From time to time, the Library is party to various pending claims and legal proceedings with respect to 
employment, civil rights, property taxes and other matters. Although the outcome of such matters cannot be 
forecasted with certainty, it is the opinion of management and the Library attorney that the likelihood is remote 
that any such claims or proceedings will have a material adverse effect on the Library's financial position or 
results of operations.
 
Grants
 
Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies, 
principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a 
liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor 
cannot be determined at this time although the Library expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

33 77 



NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN
  
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF)
 
The Library contributes to the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), a defined benefit agent multiple-
employer public employee retirement system that acts as a common investment and administrative agent for local 
governments and school districts in Illinois. IMRF issues a publicly available financial report that includes 
financial statements and required supplementary information for the plan as a whole, but not by individual 
employer. That report may be obtained online at www.imrf.org. The benefits, benefit levels, employee 
contributions, and employer contributions are governed by Illinois Compiled Statutes (ILCS) and can only be 
amended by the Illinois General Assembly.
 
Plan Descriptions
 
Plan Administration. All hired in positions that meet or exceed the prescribed annual hourly standard must be 
enrolled in IMRF as participating members. The plan is accounted for on the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Employer and employee contributions are recognized when earned in 
the year that the contributions are required, benefits and refunds are recognized as an expense and liability when 
due and payable.  
 
Benefits Provided. IMRF has three benefit plans. The vast majority of IMRF members participate in the Regular 
Plan (RP). The Sheriff’s Law Enforcement Personnel (SLEP) plan is for sheriffs, deputy sheriffs, and selected 
police chiefs. Counties could adopt the Elected County Official (ECO) plan for officials elected prior to August 8, 
2011 (the ECO plan was closed to new participants after that date).
 
IMRF provides two tiers of pension benefits. Employees hired before January 1, 2011, are eligible for Tier 1 
benefits. Tier 1 employees are vested for pension benefits when they have at least eight years of qualifying service 
credit. Tier 1 employees who retire at age 55 (at reduced benefits) or after age 60 (at full benefits) with eight years 
of service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1-2/3% of 
the final rate of earnings for the first 15 years of service credit, plus 2% for each year of service credit after 15 
years to a maximum of 75% of their final rate of earnings. Final rate of earnings is the highest total earnings 
during any consecutive 48 months within the last 10 years of service, divided by 48. Under Tier 1, the pension is 
increased by 3% of the original amount on January 1 every year after retirement.

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

34 78 

www.imrf.org


NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - Continued 
 
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) - Continued 

Plan Descriptions - Continued

Benefits Provided - Continued. Employees hired on or after January 1, 2011, are eligible for Tier 2 benefits. For 
Tier 2 employees, pension benefits vest after ten years of service. Participating employees who retire at age 62 (at 
reduced benefits) or after age 67 (at full benefits) with ten years of service are entitled to an annual retirement 
benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1-2/3% of the final rate of earnings for the first 15 years 
of service credit, plus 2% for each year of service credit after 15 years to a maximum of 75% of their final rate of 
earnings. Final rate of earnings is the highest total earnings during any 96 consecutive months within the last 10 
years of service, divided by 96. Under Tier 2, the pension is increased on January 1 every year after retirement, 
upon reaching age 67, by the lesser of:
 

• 3% of the original pension amount, or 
 

• 1/2 of the increase in the Consumer Price Index of the original pension amount. 

Plan Membership. As of December 31, 2024, the measurement date, the following employees were covered by 
the benefit terms:

 
Inactive Plan Members Currently Receiving Benefits  67 
Inactive Plan Members Entitled to but not yet Receiving Benefits  42 
Active Plan Members  37 

Total  146 

Contributions. As set by statute, the Library’s Regular Plan Members are required to contribute 4.50% of their 
annual covered salary. The statute requires employers to contribute the amount necessary, in addition to member 
contributions, to finance the retirement coverage of its own employees. For the year-ended June 30, 2025, the 
Library's contribution was 4.41% of covered payroll. 
 
Net Pension (Asset). The Library’s net pension (asset) was measured as of December 31, 2024. The total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension (asset) was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

35 79 



NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - Continued 
 
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) - Continued 

Plan Descriptions - Continued

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed, as of 
December 31, 2024, using the following actuarial methods and assumptions:

 
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age

Normal

Asset Valuation Method Fair Value

Actuarial Assumptions
Interest Rate 7.25%

Salary Increases 2.85% to 13.75%

Cost of Living Adjustments 2.75%

Inflation 2.25%

For non-disabled retirees, the Pub-2010, Amount-Weighted, below-median income, General, Retiree, Male 
(adjusted 108.0%) and Female (adjusted 106.4%) tables, and future mortality improvements projected using scale 
MP-2021. For disabled retirees, the Pub-2010, Amount-Weighted, below-median income, General, Disabled 
Retiree, Male and Female (both unadjusted) tables, and future mortality improvements projected using scale 
MP-2021. For active members, the Pub-2010, Amount-Weighted, below-median income, General, Employee, 
Male and Female (both unadjusted) tables, and future mortality improvements projected using scale MP-2021. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method 
in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan 
investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to 
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return to the target 
asset allocation percentage and adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of geometric 
real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

36 80 



NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued
 
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - Continued 
 
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) - Continued 
 
Plan Descriptions - Continued 

Actuarial Assumptions - Continued
 

Long-Term
Expected Real

Asset Class Target Rate of Return

Fixed Income 24.50% 5.20%
Domestic Equities 33.50% 4.35%
International Equities 18.00% 5.40%
Real Estate 10.50% 6.40%
Blended 12.50% 4.85% - 6.25%
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1.00% 3.60%

Discount Rate
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25%, the same as the prior valuation. The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that member contributions will be made at 
the current contribution rate and that Library contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between 
the actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on those assumptions, the Fund’s 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all project future benefit payments of current plan 
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all period 
of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
 
Discount Rate Sensitivity
 
The following is a sensitivity analysis of the net pension liability/(asset) to changes in the discount rate. The table 
below presents the net pension liability/(asset) of the Library calculated using the discount rate as well as what the 
Library’s net pension liability/(asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage 
point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate: 
 

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

(6.25%) (7.25%) (8.25%)

Net Pension Liability/(Asset) $  1,476,706  (140,768)  (1,442,985) 

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

37 81 



NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - Continued

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) - Continued

Changes in the Net Pension (Asset)

Total
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position (Asset)

(A) (B) (A) - (B)

Balances at December 31, 2023 $  13,953,947  14,050,397 (96,450)

Changes for the Year:
Service Cost  173,599  — 173,599
Interest on the Total Pension Liability  985,864  — 985,864
Difference Between Expected and Actual

Experience of the Total Pension Liability  148,065  — 148,065
Changes of Assumptions  —  — —
Contributions - Employer  —  60,866 (60,866)
Contributions - Employees  —  93,163 (93,163)
Net Investment Income  —  1,439,832 (1,439,832)
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds

of Employee Contributions  (885,233)  (885,233) —
Other (Net Transfer)  —  (242,015) 242,015

Net Changes 422,295 466,613 (44,318)

Balances at December 31, 2024 14,376,242 14,517,010 (140,768)

Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

For the year ended June 30, 2025, the Library recognized pension expense of $412,111. At June 30, 2025, the 
Library reported deferred outflows or resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the 
following sources:

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

38 82 



NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - Continued

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) - Continued

Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions - 
Continued

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources Totals

Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience $ 92,815 — 92,815
Change in Assumptions 530 — 530
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual

Earnings on Pension Plan Investments 348,594 — 348,594
Total Expense to be Recognized in Future Periods 441,939 — 441,939

Pension Contributions Made Subsequent
 to the Measurement Date 60,690 — 60,690

Total Deferred Amounts Related to IMRF 502,629 — 502,629

$60,690 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from employer contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the 
reporting year ended June 30, 2026. Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense in future periods as follows:

Net Deferred
Outflows/

Fiscal (Inflows)
Year of Resources

2026 $ 235,006
2027 502,792
2028 (204,566)
2029 (91,293)
2030 —

Thereafter —

Total 441,939

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

39 83 



NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

General Information about the OPEB Plan

Plan Description. The Library’s defined benefit OPEB plan, Lisle Library District’s Retiree Benefit Plan (RBP), 
provides OPEB for all permanent full-time general employees of the Library. RBP is a single-employer defined 
benefit OPEB plan administered by the Library. Article 11 of the State Compiled Statutes grants the authority to 
establish and amend the benefit terms and financing requirements to the Library Board. No assets are accumulated 
in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement 75.

Benefits Provided. RBP provides healthcare, dental, vision, and life benefits for retirees and their dependents. 
Retirees and spousal/dependent may continue these benefits through COBRA provisions until the Medicare age. 
Coverage is secondary to Medicare once retiree is eligible.

Plan Membership. As of June 30, 2024, the measurement date, the following employees were covered by the 
benefit terms:

Inactive Plan Members Currently Receiving Benefits 2
Inactive Plan Members Entitled to but not yet Receiving Benefits —
Active Plan Members 29

Total 31

Total OPEB Liability

The Library’s total OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2025, and was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of June 30, 2024. 

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs. The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2024 actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement, unless otherwise specified: 
  

Inflation 2.25%

Salary Increases 2.50%

Discount Rate 5.20%

Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 7.60% for 2025, decreasing to an ultimate rate of 5.0% for 
2034 and later years.

Retirees' Share of Benefit-Related Costs 100% of projected health insurance premiums for retirees.

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

40 84 



NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued
 
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - Continued
 
Total OPEB Liability - Continued
 
Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs - Continued. The discount rate was based on a combination of the 
Expected Long-Term Rate of Return on Plan Assets and the Municipal Bond Rate.
 
Mortality rates were based on PubG-2010(B) Improved Generationally using MP-2020 Improvement Rates, 
weighted per IMRF Experience Study Report dated December 14, 2020; Age 83 for Males, Age 87 for Females.
 
Change in the Total OPEB Liability

Total
OPEB

Liability

Balance at June 30, 2024 $  467,868 

Changes for the Year:
Service Cost  27,212 
Interest on the Total OPEB Liability  17,743 
Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience  — 
Changes of Assumptions or Other Inputs  (49,139) 
Benefit Payments  (32,783) 

Net Changes  (36,967) 

Balance at June 30, 2025  430,901 
 
Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
  
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.20%, and 3.93% in the previous year. The 
following presents the total OPEB liability, calculated using the discount rate, as well as what the total OPEB 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage 
point higher:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

(4.20%) (5.20%) (6.20%)

Total OPEB Liability $  469,056  430,901  396,511 

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

41 85 



NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - Continued

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

The following presents the total OPEB liability, calculated using a Healthcare Trend Rate of varied rates. as well 
as what the total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a Healthcare Trend Rate that is one 
percentage point lower or one percentage point higher: 

Healthcare
Cost Trend

1% Decrease Rates 1% Increase
(Varies) (Varies) (Varies)

Total OPEB Liability $  380,040  430,901  492,238 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

Per GASB Statement No. 75, under the Alternative Measurement Method, changes in Total OPEB Liability are 
immediately recognized as expense, resulting in no deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of 
resources related to OPEB. For the year ended June 30, 2025, the Library recognized OPEB revenue of $4,184. 

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2025

42 86 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Required supplementary information includes financial information and disclosures that are required by the 
GASB but are not considered a part of the basic financial statements. Such information includes:

Schedule of Employer Contributions
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund - Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule of Changes in the Employer's Net Pension Liability/(Asset)
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund - Last Ten Measurement Years

Schedule of Changes in the Employer’s Total OPEB Liability
                  Retiree Benefits Plan

Budgetary Comparison Schedules
    General Fund

       
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information

Budgetary Information - Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.

43 87 



Contributions
in Relation to

Actuarially the Actuarially Contribution Contributions as
Fiscal Determined Determined Excess/ Covered a Percentage of
Year Contribution Contribution (Deficiency) Payroll Covered Payroll

2016 $  217,559 $  417,559 $  200,000 $  1,789,131 23.34%
2017  207,454  407,454  200,000  1,844,038 22.10%
2018  193,950  393,950  200,000  1,897,760 20.76%
2019  158,227  208,227  50,000  1,973,978 10.55%
2020  154,606  204,606  50,000  1,997,521 10.24%
2021  155,052  155,052  —  1,949,407 7.95%
2022  117,469  117,469  —  1,933,780 6.07%
2023  65,328  65,328  —  1,942,019 3.36%
2024  49,468  49,468  —  2,008,674 2.46%
2025  92,752  92,752  —  2,100,844 4.41%

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information:

Actuarial Cost Method Aggregate Entry Age Normal
Amortization Method Level % Pay (Closed)
Remaining Amortization Period 19 Years
Asset Valuation Method 5-Year Smoothed Fair Value
Inflation 2.25%
Salary Increases 2.75% to 13.75%, Including Inflation
Investment Rate of Return 7.25%
Retirement Age Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the type of eligibility 

condition. Last updated for the 2020 valuation pursuant to an experience 
study of the period 2017-2019.

Mortality For non-disabled retirees, the Pub-2010, Amount-Weighted, below-median 
income, General, Retiree, Male (adjusted 106%) and Female (adjusted 
105%) tables, and future mortality improvements projected using scale 
MP-2020. For disabled retirees, the Pub-2010, Amount-Weighted, below-
median income, General, Disabled Retiree, Male and Female (both 
unadjusted) tables, and future mortality improvements projected using scale 
MP-2020. For active members, the Pub-2010, Amount-Weighted, below-
median income, General, Employee, Male and Female (both unadjusted) 
tables, and future mortality improvements projected using scale MP-2020.

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund
Schedule of Employer Contributions - Last Ten Fiscal Years
June 30, 2025

44 88 



12/31/2015 12/31/2016 12/31/2017

Total Pension Liability
Service Cost $ 192,393 198,379 201,154
Interest 731,221 769,533 795,236
Changes in Benefit Terms 131,639 (15,995) 444,594
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience 11,769 (12,132) (370,460)
Change of Assumptions — — —
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Member Contributions (573,186) (517,799) (706,518)

Net Change in Total Pension Liability 493,836 421,986 364,006
Total Pension Liability - Beginning 9,940,012 10,433,848 10,855,834

Total Pension Liability - Ending 10,433,848 10,855,834 11,219,840

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - Employer $ 417,559 407,454 393,950
Contributions - Members 80,511 84,258 85,399
Net Investment Income 47,016 658,956 1,838,864
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Member Contributions (573,186) (517,799) (706,518)
Other (Net Transfer) 139,110 46,551 (73,706)

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 111,010 679,420 1,537,989
Plan Net Position - Beginning 9,440,680 9,551,690 10,231,110

Plan Net Position - Ending 9,551,690 10,231,110 11,769,099

Employer's Net Pension Liability/(Asset) $ 882,158 624,724 (549,259)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the
 Total Pension Liability  91.55 %  94.25 %  104.90 %

Covered Payroll $ 1,789,131 1,844,038 1,897,760

Employer's Net Pension Liability/(Asset) as a Percentage of
Covered Payroll  49.31%  33.88%  (28.94%) 

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund
Schedule of Changes in the Employer's Net Pension Liability/(Asset) - Last Ten Measurement Years
June 30, 2025

45 89 



12/31/2018 12/31/2019 12/31/2020 12/31/2021 12/31/2022 12/31/2023 12/31/2024

195,943 213,339 200,268 193,144 178,841 176,225 173,599
823,454 844,588 867,136 895,886 932,792 966,316 985,864
42,065 (8,051) — — — — —

312,125 — 244,782 239,194 207,360 3,374 148,065
— — (162,620) — — 1,776 —

(676,856) (747,496) (717,169) (781,751) (842,302) (868,256) (885,233)

696,731 302,380 432,397 546,473 476,691 279,435 422,295
11,219,840 11,916,571 12,218,951 12,651,348 13,197,821 13,674,512 13,953,947

11,916,571 12,218,951 12,651,348 13,197,821 13,674,512 13,953,947 14,376,242

181,804 233,656 174,420 139,559 94,547 38,962 60,866
87,687 89,769 89,192 88,063 86,653 88,550 93,163

(752,990) 2,139,555 1,873,272 2,461,766 (2,209,770) 1,503,773 1,439,832
(676,856) (747,496) (717,169) (781,751) (842,302) (868,256) (885,233)

238,133 113,113 91,923 86,396 2,571 (25,476) (242,015)

(922,222) 1,828,597 1,511,638 1,994,033 (2,868,301) 737,553 466,613
11,769,099 10,846,877 12,675,474 14,187,112 16,181,145 13,312,844 14,050,397

10,846,877 12,675,474 14,187,112 16,181,145 13,312,844 14,050,397 14,517,010

1,069,694 (456,523) (1,535,764) (2,983,324) 361,668 (96,450) (140,768)

 91.02 %  103.74 %  112.14 %  122.60 %  97.36 %  100.69 %  100.98 %

1,948,600 1,994,862 1,982,046 1,935,635 1,925,617 1,967,792 2,070,285

 54.90%  (22.88%)  (77.48%)  (154.13%)  18.78%  (4.90%)  (6.80%) 

46 90 



6/30/2022 6/30/2023 6/30/2024 6/30/2025

Total OPEB Liability
Service Cost $ 4,268 3,480 3,329 27,212
Interest 13,723 18,170 18,217 17,743
Changes in Benefit Terms — — — —
Differences Between Expected and Actual

Experience — — (37,751) (49,139)
Change of Assumptions or Other Inputs (109,094) (6,597) (1,438) —
Benefit Payments (30,621) (31,282) (27,170) (32,783)
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability (121,724) (16,229) (44,813) (36,967)
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning 650,634 528,910 512,681 467,868

Total OPEB Liability - Ending 528,910 512,681 467,868 430,901

Covered-Employee Payroll $ 1,948,335 1,816,753 1,800,724 1,804,959

Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage of 
Covered-Employee Payroll  27.15 %  28.22 %  25.98 %  23.87 %

Notes:
This schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Information for additional years will be displayed as 
it becomes available.

No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement 75.

Changes of Assumptions. Changes in assumptions related to the discount rate were made from 2022 through 
2025.

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Retiree Benefit Plan
Schedule of Changes in the Employer's Total OPEB Liability
June 30, 2025

47 91 



Budget
Original Final Actual

Revenues
Property Taxes $  4,280,000  4,280,000  4,282,945 
TIF Revenues  35,000  35,000  139,588 
Replacement Taxes  42,720  42,720  24,827 
Charges for Services  16,600  16,600  17,944 
Grants and Donations  46,000  46,000  44,967 
Interest Income  56,000  56,000  101,612 
Miscellaneous  5,000  5,000  6,719 

Total Revenues  4,481,320  4,481,320  4,618,602 

Expenditures
Public Library

Employee Costs  2,655,000  2,655,000  2,615,330 
Building Costs  232,300  232,300  238,338 
Operating Costs  199,225  199,225  177,079 
Insurance  61,250  61,250  52,540 
Contractual Services  189,925  189,925  168,081 
Personnel Development  26,525  26,525  16,217 
Programs  47,000  47,000  44,079 
Restricted  48,000  48,000  45,123 
Contingency  25,000  25,000  14,353 

Capital Outlay  736,250  736,250  681,208 
Debt Service

Principal Retirement  40,000  40,000  40,000 
Interest and Fiscal Charges  26,000  26,000  25,000 

Total Expenditures  4,286,475  4,286,475  4,117,348 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures  194,845  194,845  501,254 

Other Financing (Uses)
Transfers Out  (120,000)  (120,000)  (120,000) 

Net Change in Fund Balance  74,845  74,845  381,254 

Fund Balance - Beginning  2,710,681 

Fund Balance - Ending  3,091,935 

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2025

48 92 



OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Other supplementary information includes financial statements and schedules not required by the GASB, nor a 
part of the basic financial statements, but are presented for purposes of additional analysis.

Such statements and schedules include:

Budgetary Comparison Schedules - Major Governmental Fund

Combining Statements - Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Budgetary Comparison Schedules - Nonmajor Governmental Funds

49 93 



INDIVIDUAL FUND DESCRIPTIONS

GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is used to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in 
another fund.

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than fiduciary 
funds or capital project funds) that are legally restricted to expenditure for specified purposes.

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund

The Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund is used to account for expenditures related to IMRF.

Social Security Fund

The Social Security Fund is used to account for expenditures related to social security.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Capital projects funds are used to account for all resources used for the acquisition of capital facilities and 
equipment.

Special Reserve Fund

The Special Reserve Fund is used to account for all resources used for the acquisition of capital assets by the 
Library, including general and infrastructure capital assets.

50 94 



Budget
Original Final Actual

Revenues
Interest Income $  12,000  12,000  10,875 

Expenditures
Capital Outlay  760,000  760,000  321,222 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures  (748,000)  (748,000)  (310,347) 

Other Financing Sources
Transfers In  120,000  120,000  120,000 

Net Change in Fund Balance  (628,000)  (628,000)  (190,347) 

Fund Balance - Beginning  552,886 

Fund Balance - Ending  362,539 

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Special Reserve - Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2025

51 95 



Special Revenue
Illinois

Municipal Social
Retirement Security Totals

ASSETS

Cash and Investments $  144,380  275,335  419,715 
Receivables - Net of Allowances

Property Taxes  38,391  84,166  122,557 

Total Assets  182,771  359,501  542,272 

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable  2,197  4,165  6,362 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES

Property Taxes  80,873  177,299  258,172 
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows

of Resources  83,070  181,464  264,534 

FUND BALANCES

Restricted  99,701  178,037  277,738 

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balances  182,771  359,501  542,272 

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Combining Balance Sheet
June 30, 2025

52 96 



Special Revenue
Illinois

Municipal Social
Retirement Security Totals

Revenues
Property Taxes $  50,086  176,010  226,096 
Replacement Taxes  1,433  225  1,658 
Interest Income  3,010  5,025  8,035 

Total Revenues  54,529  181,260  235,789 

Expenditures
Public Library

Employee Costs 92,752 171,722  264,474 

Net Change in Fund Balances  (38,223)  9,538  (28,685) 

Fund Balances - Beginning  137,924  168,499  306,423 

Fund Balances - Ending  99,701  178,037  277,738 

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2025

53 97 



Budget
Original Final Actual

Revenues
Property Taxes $  50,000  50,000  50,086 
Replacement Taxes  2,470  2,470  1,433 
Interest Income  2,500  2,500  3,010 

Total Revenues  54,970  54,970  54,529 

Expenditures
Public Library

Employee Costs  150,000  150,000  92,752 

Net Change in Fund Balance  (95,030)  (95,030)  (38,223) 

Fund Balance - Beginning  137,924 

Fund Balance - Ending  99,701 

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Illinois Municipal Retirement - Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2025

54 98 



Budget
Original Final Actual

Revenues
Property Taxes $  176,225  176,225  176,010 
Replacement Taxes  390  390  225 
Interest Income  3,500  3,500  5,025 

Total Revenues  180,115  180,115  181,260 

Expenditures
Public Library

Employee Costs  178,000  178,000  171,722 

Net Change in Fund Balance  2,115  2,115  9,538 

Fund Balance - Beginning  168,499 

Fund Balance - Ending   178,037 

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Social Security - Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2025

55 99 



SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES

56 100 



See Following Page

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

General Governmental Revenues by Source - Last Ten Fiscal Years
June 30, 2025

57 101 



2016 2017 2018

Revenues
Property Taxes $  4,728,861  4,868,951  4,868,674 
TIF Revenue  45,899  45,454  42,866 
Replacement Taxes  17,621  19,763  16,387 
Charges for Services  57,937  54,836  47,645 
Grants and Donations  21,972  520  22,419 
Interest Income (Loss)  66,889  68,001  104,938 
Miscellaneous  4,477  580  4,103 

Total Revenues 4,943,656 5,058,105  5,107,032 

Data Source: Library Records

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

General Governmental Revenues by Source - Last Ten Fiscal Years
June 30, 2025

58 102 



2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

 4,355,579  4,138,681  3,981,235  4,022,647  4,092,555  4,294,894  4,509,041 
 50,982  34,509  32,563  31,560  31,756  32,139  139,588 
 17,728  19,405  24,613  53,649  60,640  39,943  26,485 
 42,639  19,417  9,369  23,905  8,223  12,643  17,944 
 36,763  35,630  35,630  42,043  44,664  44,664  44,967 
 249,427  214,443  33,825  (1,454)  176,834  109,116  120,522 
 —  —  4,618  27,039  6,074 5,104 6,719

 4,753,118  4,462,085  4,121,853  4,199,389  4,420,746  4,538,503  4,865,266 

59 103 



2016 2017 2018

Expenditures
Public Library

Employee Costs $  2,921,243  2,993,256  3,000,285 
Building Costs  220,308  267,694  256,337 
Operating Costs  176,770  191,721  177,576 
Contractual Services  162,699  178,534  133,927 
Restricted  35,629  21,972  22,131 
Contingency  11,238  —  1,926 
Capital Outlay  615,573  633,858  651,027 

Debt Service
Principal Retirement  —  —  — 
Interest and Fiscal Charges  —  —  — 

Total Expenditures  4,143,460  4,287,035  4,243,209 

Data Source: Library Records

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

General Governmental Expenditures by Function - Last Ten Fiscal Years
June 30, 2025

60 104 



2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

 2,750,189  2,788,329  2,732,690  2,668,760  2,609,279  2,710,139  2,879,804 
 238,812  228,250  228,473  218,961  241,392  234,861  238,338 
 94,216  112,404  144,738  156,751  173,363  170,100  177,079 
 174,265  198,079  215,620  218,902  237,455  265,554  280,917 
 85,358  85,630  35,647  72,197  47,593  45,164  45,123 
 16,260  17,850  —  13,882  —  —  14,353 
 855,297  913,210  833,860  2,433,438  6,074,678  895,994  1,002,430 

 —  —  —  —  35,000  40,000  40,000 
 —  —  —  38,825  13,250  25,800  25,000 

 4,214,397  4,343,752  4,191,028  5,821,716  9,432,010  4,387,612  4,703,044 

61 105 



2015 2016 2017

Assessed Valuations $ 1,105,409,779 1,178,835,794 1,207,428,945

Tax Rates
General 0.3963 0.3689 0.3242
Building Maintenance 0.0110 0.0116 0.0126
IMRF 0.0202 0.0187 0.0130
Social Security 0.0115 0.0148 0.0113

Total Tax Rates 0.4390 0.4140 0.3611

Tax Extensions
General 4,380,739 4,348,725 3,914,485
Building Maintenance 121,595 136,745 152,136
IMRF 223,293 220,442 156,966
Social Security 127,122 174,468 136,439

Total Tax Extensions 4,852,749 4,880,380 4,360,026

Collections 4,846,648 4,868,913 4,353,359

Percent Collected  99.87%  99.77%  99.85% 

Data Source:  Office of the County Clerk
Note: Rates are per $1,000 of Assessed Value

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT
LISLE, ILLINOIS

Schedule of Assessed Valuations, Tax Rates, Tax Extensions and Tax Collections
Last Ten Tax Levy Years
June 30, 2025

62 106 



2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

1,243,518,289 1,267,612,883 1,321,712,761 1,336,109,673 1,386,436,183 1,432,565,614 1,555,250,630

0.3190 0.2927 0.2857 0.2879 0.2979 0.2987 0.2838
— — — — — — —

0.0041 0.0092 0.0062 0.0060 — 0.0035 0.0052
0.0102 0.0126 0.0129 0.0128 0.0125 0.0123 0.0114

0.3333 0.3145 0.3048 0.3067 0.3104 0.3145 0.3004

3,966,823 3,710,303 3,776,133 3,846,659 4,130,194 4,287,669 4,434,020
— — — — — — —

50,984 116,620 81,946 80,167 — 50,140 80,873
126,839 159,719 170,501 171,022 173,304 176,206 177,299

4,144,646 3,986,642 4,028,580 4,097,848 4,303,498 4,514,015 4,692,192

4,138,681 3,981,235 4,022,196 4,091,763 4,294,278 4,500,743 2,453,880

 99.86%  99.86%  99.84%  99.85%  99.79%  99.71%  52.30% 

63 107 



 

 

Notice of Availability of Audit Report 

Notice is given pursuant to the Public Funds Statement Publication Act of the availability of an audit 

report for the Lisle Library District. 

1. The audit report covers the time period from July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025; 

2. The audit was conducted by Lauterbach & Amen, LLP, certified public accountants; 

3. The audit report is available for inspection at the Lisle Library District, 777 Front Street, Lisle, 

Illinois during regular operating hours. See lislelibrary.org for hours and digital version of audit. 

 

__________________________________ 

Debbie Breihan, Treasurer of the LLD Board of Trustees 

Lisle Library District 

108 



109 



110 



111 



112 



To: LLD Board of Trustees 
From: Tatiana Weinstein 
Date: November 14, 2025 

 
 
 

LLD Tax Levy Ordinance 25-05 Overview 
 

 
Revenue generated by Lisle Library District (LLD) Tax Levy Ordinance 25-05 will be received in the 
next fiscal year. Illinois law mandates that the LLD Levy cannot exceed the amounts appropriated in 
this year’s Budget and Appropriation (B&A) Ordinance. The B&A was reviewed by the LLD’s Attorney 
and approved by the LLD Board of Trustees on September 17, 2025.  
 
Each line item within the Draft shows the B&A amount beside the amount the LLD intends to levy.  
LLD Administration drafted the Levy utilizing the B&A, the adopted Working Budget, last year’s 
DuPage County final extension document, and realistic financial projections. The LLD established a 
financial plan that recommends practical annual levy increases in order to fulfill its debt certificate 
obligation utilizing the CPI and other relevant variables to determine a reasonable levy amount each 
year.  
 
This year, the Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS) has posted a general, national, CPI increase of 3%. 
There is no updated/current CPI report for the local Midwest region (Chicago-Naperville-Elgin; used 
in previous years). Calling the local office, I was informed that many BLS staff have been furloughed 
and that certain reports are no longer available or have not yet been updated. Below is the general 
statement on the BLS website as of 11/13/25:   
 

CPI for all items rises 0.3% in September; gasoline up 

In September, the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers rose 0.3 percent, 

seasonally adjusted, and rose 3.0 percent over the last 12 months, not seasonally adjusted. 

The index for all items less food and energy increased 0.2 percent in September (SA); up 3.0 

percent over the year (NSA). 

 
The CPI for the local Midwest Region has had dynamic fluctuations in the past several years. We 
continue to remain in economic flux regarding healthcare costs, equipment purchases, technology 
acquisitions, and the inflationary increases outsourced providers are adding to their services due to 
the restless economy.   
 
In 2021, the LLD received a Moody’s rating of Aa1; this remains unchanged. The LLD conducts a 
professional audit annually. Year after year, the LLD has demonstrated a healthy fiscal position. The 
LLD shall continue to use pragmatic methods to plan for its services, programs, and staffing that 
meet the needs of the District. LLD Tax Levy Ordinance 25-05 shows a reasonable 4% increase from 
last year’s extension. The LLD is permitted to levy up to 4.99% in compliance with the TITA & PTELL.  
 
LLD Tax Levy Ordinance 25-05 has been reviewed and supported by the LLD’s Attorney. The LLD 
Administration respectfully recommends the LLD Board of Trustees adopt Tax Levy Ordinance 25-05 
as presented.   
   
 
Tatiana Weinstein 
LLD Director 
 

113 

https://www.bls.gov/news.release/cpi.nr0.htm


 

 

ORDINANCE 25-05 
TAX LEVY ORDINANCE 

 
AN ORDINANCE LEVYING TAXES FOR CORPORATE PURPOSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 
2025, AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2026, FOR THE LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT, OF DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.1  
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES OF THE LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT: 

 
Section 1: Ordinance 25-04 (Budget and Appropriation Ordinance) is incorporated for 
reference. 

 
Section 2: A tax for the following sums of money, or as much as thereof as may be authorized 
by law, to defray all expenses and liabilities of the Lisle Library District be and the same is 
hereby levied for the purposes specified against all taxable property in the Lisle Library District 
for the fiscal year commencing on the 1st day of July, 2025, and ending on the 30th day of 
June, 2026. 

 
  

                                                           
1 Note to taxpayers:   

• This Tax Levy Ordinance relates to Library District taxes to be reflected on DuPage County real estate tax bills to be 
sent in May, 2026. 

• The real estate tax revenue generated by this Tax Levy Ordinance will be received by the Library District in 2026.  
Reference in this Tax Levy Ordinance to the Library District’s 2025-2026 fiscal year simply complies with state laws 
applicable to Library Districts. 

DRAFT

114 



1. CORPORATE FUND

AMOUNT  

APPROPRIATED

AMOUNT    

LEVIED

EXPENDITURES

A. EMPLOYEE COSTS

Salaries $2,450,000.00 2,450,000.00

Health Ins/Unemployment $390,000.00 390,000.00

$2,840,000.00 2,840,000.00

B. BUILDING COSTS

Internet/INET $10,000.00 10,000.00

Utilities $98,000.00 98,000.00

Maint. Contracts $135,000.00 135,000.00

Maint. Repairs $90,000.00 90,000.00

Rubbish Removal $4,500.00 4,000.00

$337,500.00 337,000.00

C. OPERATING COSTS

Postage/Shipping $17,000.00 17,000.00

Printing $28,000.00 28,000.00

Supplies/Processing $77,000.00 77,000.00

Bank/Notices $9,000.00 8,000.00

Local Travel $500.00 500.00

$131,500.00 130,500.00

D. INSURANCE COSTS

Fidelity Bond $1,200.00 1,200.00

Prop. Damage (All Peril) $62,000.00 62,000.00

Notary Bond $200.00 200.00

Workers Comp $8,000.00 8,000.00

$71,400.00 71,400.00

E. CONTRACTUAL COSTS  

Legal Services $15,000.00 15,000.00

Collection Agency $1,000.00 1,000.00

Outsrc Acc/HR/Outsrc IT $180,000.00 180,000.00

Investment Agency $3,500.00 3,500.00

Acct Software $5,500.00 5,500.00

Audit $11,000.00 11,000.00

Payroll Service $14,500.00 14,500.00

$230,500.00 230,500.00

DRAFT

115 



CORPORATE FUND (cont.)

AMOUNT  

APPROPRIATED

AMOUNT    

LEVIED

F. PERSONNEL DEVELOPMENT

Staff Dues/Conf $12,000.00 12,000.00

Memorial/Recog $5,500.00 5,500.00

In-Service Day $3,500.00 3,500.00

Cont. Ed $3,000.00 3,000.00

Trustee Dues/Conf/Train $3,000.00 3,000.00

$27,000.00 27,000.00

G. EQUIPMENT

Polaris $90,000.00 80,000.00

Technology $80,000.00 80,000.00

Facility $20,000.00 10,000.00

Minor Equip $4,000.00 4,000.00

Other Fac Main/Repairs $30,000.00 20,000.00

$224,000.00 194,000.00

H. LIBRARY MATERIALS

Books $260,000.00 250,000.00

Databases $128,000.00 120,000.00

Doc Delivery/ILLs $29,000.00 29,000.00

Audio/Visual $215,000.00 215,000.00

Periodicals $25,000.00 25,000.00

$657,000.00 639,000.00

I. PROGRAMS

Lib-Wide Programs $40,000.00 40,000.00

Com Rel/Supplies $20,000.00 20,000.00

$60,000.00 60,000.00

J. OTHER EXPENSES

Gifts (if gifts are received) $1,000,000.00

Per Capita Grant (per State if received) $47,000.00

$1,047,000.00 0.00

K. DEBT CERTIFICATE $65,000.00 65,000.00

L. CONTINGENCY $35,000.00

Corporate Fund subtotal $5,725,900.00 4,594,400.00

Levied for the foregoing  expenses from the General Public Library Tax

Transfer to Special Reserve $750,000.00

Total Corporate $6,475,900.00 4,594,400.00

DRAFT

116 



AMOUNT  

APPROPRIATED

AMOUNT    

LEVIED

2.  IMRF (Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund) $116,000.00 90,000.00

IMRF (supplemental funding) $25,000.00

Total IMRF   $141,000.00 90,000.00

 

3. FICA FUND (Federal Insurance Contributions Act) $188,000.00 179,000.00

Levied for the foregoing expense of Social Security from Special

Tax in addition to all other taxes levied by the District

Total Corp/IMRF/FICA $6,804,900.00 4,863,400.00

4.  SPECIAL RESERVE FUND

Consulting $50,000.00

Facility/Campus $25,000.00

Furniture/Equip $30,000.00

Security Systems $10,000.00

Generator $60,000.00

Project Expense $1,500,000.00

Total Special Reserve $1,675,000.00 0.00

SUMMARY

Total Appropriation $8,479,900.00

Levied as the General Public Library Tax 4,594,400.00

Levied as Special Fund Taxes 269,000.00

TOTAL LEVY 4,863,400.00

Levied for the foregoing expense of Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund from a Special Tax in 

addition to all other taxes levied by the District

DRAFT

117 



 

 

Section 3:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage. 
 
ADOPTED and approved November 19, 2025, pursuant to a roll call vote as follows: 
 
 
AYES: _________________________________________________________________________ 
 
NAYS: __________________________________________________________________________ 
 
ABSENT: ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Emily Swistak 
President, Board of Library Trustees 
Lisle Library District 
Passed and filed in my office November 19, 2025. 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Joshua Martin 
Secretary, Board of Library Trustees 
Lisle Library District 

DRAFT

118 



 

 

STATE OF ILLINOIS )  
    ) SS 
COUNTY OF DUPAGE ) 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICITY 
 
 

I, Joshua Martin, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified Secretary of the 
 
 Board of Trustees of the Lisle Library District of DuPage County, Illinois, and, as such 
 
 I am the custodian and keeper of the records and files of said Library District. 
 
 

I do further certify that the attached is a true and correct copy of that certain Levy 
 
 Ordinance levying and assessing taxes for said Lisle Library District for the fiscal year 
 
 beginning July 1, 2025, which was adopted by said Board of Trustees at a meeting of 
 
 said Board of Trustees held on November 19, 2025. 
 
 

I do further certify that the attached Ordinance has not been amended, altered, 
 
 changed or repealed and is still in full force and effect. 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my official signature and the 
 
 corporate seal of said Lisle Library District, DuPage County, Illinois, at Lisle, Illinois this 
 
 19th day of November, 2025. 
 
 
______________________________ 

Joshua Martin 
Secretary, Board of Library Trustees 
Lisle Library District 
DuPage County, Illinois 

119 



 

 

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
   ) SS 
COUNTY OF DUPAGE ) 
 
 
 CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH 

THE TRUTH IN TAXATION LAW 

 
 

I, Emily Swistak, certify that I am the duly presiding officer of the Lisle Library District, DuPage 

County, Illinois, and I certify that the attached ORDINANCE 25-05 (tax levy) was adopted in compliance 

with the Truth in Taxation Law, 35 ILCS 200/18-55 et seq., i.e.: 

__X__ The Library District levied an amount less than 105% of the final aggregate   
  extension plus any amount abated prior to extension for the preceding year. 

 
_____ The Library District levied an amount greater than 105% of the final aggregate   

  extension plus any amount abated prior to extension for the preceding year and   
  a public hearing was held following publication of notice of the public hearing. 
 

This Certificate applies to the 2025 levy. 

 
_________________________________  

       Emily Swistak 
President, Board of Library Trustees 
Lisle Library District 
DuPage County, Illinois 
 
Date signed: November 19, 2025 

 

120 


